
1/1 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Thursday, January 10th, 2019                                         Board Work Session 6:30pm 
  
 

AGENDA 
 

A. Call to Order Work Session 

B. Sub-Committee Reports: 

1. Facilities and Transportation (T. Pfeiffer, J. Bibb)  

A. Facilities Committee Report 
B. Bond Project Manager Report 
C. Next Facilities Committee Meeting – February 8th 

2. Negotiations (S. FitzGerald, Ken Watson) – TBD – Likely February  

3. Board Policy (Susan FitzGerald, K. Watson) – February 27th @ 9am 

4. Curriculum (S. Fitzgerald, K. Watson) – January 17th 

5. Activities (J. Bibb, T. Pfeiffer) – TBD –March & June 

6. Finance (J. Egland, S. FitzGerald)  - March 19th 

7. Communications (J. Bibb, J. Egland) – February 26th @ 4:30pm  
8. Security & Safety (K. Watson & T. Pfeiffer) – January 30th @ 3:00pm 
 

C. Adjournment 
  

Items that are BOLD ITALICS are possible Action Items. 

  

INTERPRETERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED:  To request interpreter services for this meeting call 503-
852-6980 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
Board of Directors – YCSD Boardroom 
120 N Larch Place, Yamhill, OR  97148 



 

1/2 

Thursday, January 10, 2019                                                   Regular Session- 7:00 PM 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Flag Salute 
                            

REGULAR SESSION 
 

II. Call to Order Regular Session- 30 Minutes 
III. Individuals, Delegations, Recognition, and Communications 

 
Public Comment – The Board welcomes you to its monthly meeting.  We ask that you complete an Intent to 
Speak Form and turn it in to the Board secretary at this time. The Board will receive public comments at this 
time but will defer issues to the appropriate administrator.  During public comment, the board listens but 
neither discusses, nor responds to questions and concerns. Speakers are limited to three minutes.  
 

IV. Review of Agenda 
 

V. Regular Session- Consent Agenda 
1. Approval of Board of Directors Minutes 

a. Work Session & Regular Session of December 13th, 2018 (Pg 1) 
2. Enrollment Report (Pg 5) 

 
VI. Announcements and Reports: — 30 Minutes 

I. YCES – Lauren Berg – Verbal Report 
II. YCIS – Chad Tollefson – Verbal Report 

III. YCHS – Cindy Schubert – Verbal Report 
IV. Financial Report and List of Bills for December 2018 (Action Item)  
V. District Facilities- Brian King – Verbal Report 

VI. Superintendent’s Report- Charan Cline – Verbal Report 
 

VII. New Business: 
I. 2017-2018 Audit Report – Pauly Rogers and Co PC (Action Item) (Pg7) 

II. YCSD OSBA Scholarship (Action Item) (Pg 83) 
III. 1st Reading of Policies (Pg 87) 

a. GCDA/GDDA – Criminal Records Checks and Fingerprinting 
IV. 2nd Reading & Adoption of Policies (Action Item) (Pg 90) 

a. ECACB – Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) a.k.a Drone  
b. GBC – Staff Ethics  
c. GBN/JBA & JBA/GBN – Sexual Harassment  
d. GCBDC/GDBDC – Domestic Violence, Harassment, Sexual Assault or Stalking Leave  
e. IICC – Volunteers  
f. IGBA – Students with Disabilities – Child Identification Procedures 
g. IGBAH – Special Education – Evaluation Procedures  
h. IGBAJ – Special Education – Free Appropriate Education (FAPE)  
i. IGBHE – Expanded Options Program  
j. JECA – Admission of Resident Students  
k. JHFF – Reporting Requirement Regarding Sexual Conduct with Students  
l. KI- Public Solicitation in District Facilities  
m. KJ-Commercial Advertising  

 
VIII. Board of Directors Comments 

 
IX. Executive Session per ORS 192.660(2) (e) Real Property Transactions with possible action in Open Session 

 



 

2/2 

 Adjournment 

 

Note: Unless approved, Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors will be no longer than 3 hours in length at any 
single session. 

 INTERPRETERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED:  To request interpreter services for this meeting call 503-852-
6980 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Yamhill Carlton School District Board Room 

120 N Larch Place, Yamhill, OR  97148 

 

Thursday, December 13, 2018    Work Session – 6:30 PM 

MINUTES 

Board Members:  Jami Egland, Tim Pfeiffer, Jack Bibb, S. FitzGerald and Ken Watson. 

DO/Administration Staff:  Superintendent Charan Cline, Board Secretary Michelle Rettke, Business Manager Tami 

Zigler, YCIS Principal Chad Tollefson, Athletic Director Matt Wiles and YCES Principal Lauren Berg 

Also Present: P. Manson, G. Manson, G. Dromgoole, W. Titylar, E. Chadwick, J. Hovey, J. Estrada 

Call to Order Work Session – 6:30pm by Jami Egland 

I. Sub Committee Reports 

a. Facilities and Transportation – 

i. Facilities Committee Report (Tim & Jack) – plans into Fire marshal for fuel tank 

at high school, John K – wants to make improvements to dugouts on softball 

field (artificial turf) submitted proposal has to fund raise in order to cover the 

cost district cannot put any money towards it.  Also need to be aware of Title IV 

issues and make improvements to both baseball and softball at the same time. 

Brian working on getting quotes for YCIS gym, CNC machine in CTE building air 

lines, modeling clay plugging pipes at YCHS working on fix 

ii. Bond Project Report (Charan)– changes to slopes on drains that are not draining 

correctly, working on water line punch list to make corrections (most 

completed), finalization of easement is pending (completion of punch list), 

Turner is nearing end of contracted scope of work.  Interior painting on gym 

(done by January 5th), Curtain has been ordered, getting bids on concrete 

sealing, wood floor installed after concreted is sealed.  

iii. Next Meeting – January 4th, 2019 

b. Negotiations – start in February 

c. Board Policy (Ken) –  1st Reading tonight during regular session 

d. Curriculum (Ken) – Worked on Goals – 3 initiatives: build and use student data system 

for tracking, develop growth plans and goals, and communicate and engage with public 

better – looked at survey results. – Will be discussed at February Board Meeting.  

e. Activities (Tim) – Meet this evening – reviewed Fall coaching survey’s – recommend 

renewal of all fall coaches. Great success at 3A and good experience for our students. 

f. Finance – Meeting December 18th, 2018 

g. Communications – Meeting December 20th 

h. Safety & Security – January 30th, 2019 – Emergency Operations plan developed in other 

Yamhill County Schools. Attended session on student safety at OSBA convention. Involve 

educators in hiring of SRO (if district goes that route) 

 With no further discussion, the meeting adjourned 6:58 pm. 

Minutes by:  Michelle Rettke, Board Secretary 

1



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Yamhill Carlton School District Board Room 

120 N Larch Place, Yamhill, OR  97148 

 

Thursday, September 13, 2018    Regular Session – 7:00 PM 

 

MINUTES 

Board Members:  Jami Egland, Tim Pfeiffer, Jack Bibb, Susan FitzGerald and Ken Watson.  

DO/Administration Staff:  Superintendent Charan Cline, Board Secretary Michelle Rettke, Business 

Manager Tami Zigler, YCIS Principal Chad Tollefson, YCHS Vice Principal/Athletic Director Matt Wiles and 

YCES Principal Lauren Berg  

Also Present:  P. Manson, G. Manson, G. Dromgoole, B. King, R. Gelbirch, J. Wright, S. Ficek, N. Amuzu, 

W. Titylar, E. Chadwick, J. Hovey, J. Estrada 

Flag Salute 

I. Called to order by Chair Jami Egland at 7:00pm 

II. Individuals, Delegations, Recognition and Communications 

YCIS – Sources of Strength (video) Brianna, Meredith, Lucas and Cayden, Ivan (From Yamhill 

County) ‐ Diverse group of students who affect other students in their peer group as a web. 

Teach students how to access services. Share emotions and no judging, everyone has good 

attitude, everyone is nice to each other, games, different campaigns each month.  

Game of cups – Board member’s vs students   

Public Comment – No Public Comment 

III. Review of Agenda   

J. Bibb motioned to approve agenda as presented. S. FitzGerald seconded. All in favor, motion 

carried.  

IV. Regular Session – Consent Agenda 

 

J. Bibb motioned to approve the consent agenda as presented. T. Pfeiffer seconded.  All in favor, 

motion carried.  

 

V. Announcements and Report 

I. YCES – Lauren Berg – New initiative in January: YCES Vision Logo roll out in January 

(stickers, yard signs, etc), Working on goal of full RTI/MTSS Process,  Diebles again in 

January, Draft of non‐negotiables in math instructions within building, Sensory break 

space in classrooms coming in January. Also building Sensory Break room in Behavior 

classroom.  

 

II. YCIS – Chad Tollefson – Gearing up for break with conclusion of units in classroom, lots 

of activities in the building, dress up days next week (lead up to Christmas break), 

identify students who need intervention, Attendance: decline in November due to some 

2



suspension, and illness, working on setting goals for 7th & 8th grade for strategies to 

improve attendance at those grade levels, basketball is in full swing. 

 

III. YCHS – Matt Wiles – Josie W. (YCHS Student Body President), Parent/Teacher 

conference attendance was as expected, staff development – refresher on grading 

rubric/piece or work, work to build consistency – focus on student engagement and 

ownership, attended conference on Freshman Success – with tools to apply to freshman 

success class – 3 to 4‐person panel of YC graduates who will talk about importance of 

freshman year. Classes movement in YCHS as classes moved to CTE building, Winter 

Sports in full swing, playing tonight, home wrestling match tomorrow (Derek Blake 

Invitational), Accreditation happening in April  

 

 

IV. Financial Report and List of Bills for November 2018 

Audit will be to state by December 31st – Auditors will be at January Board meeting, new 

bond financial report in packet tonight (at the request of Finance Committee) 

Community has paid for 14.2‐million‐dollar bond and got the benefit of 20+ Million 

dollars of work 

T. Pfeiffer motioned to approve the financial report and list of bills for November 2018.  

K. Watson seconded. All in favor, motion carried.  

II. District Facilities – Brian King ‐ New Gym floor was delivered today (hope to install at 

end of January), heating/cooling at YCES – electrical upgrades happening over the break, 

working on getting equipment maintained for winter and ready for spring, have gotten 

caught up on projects so working on getting systems and stuff organized,  

 

III. Food Service – Shiloh Ficek – increase in lunches served, free and reduced lunch % is at 

37.3, summer food – work on closed enrolled site again (also route that ODE 

recommends go), closed site is not done by very many in Oregon ‐ negative lunch 

balance is $4700, systems in place have helped to keep the negative balances low.  

 

IV. Superintendent’s Report – Charan Cline ‐ exterior of new gym is almost done – Title 4 

funding available – elementary school mentoring, use high school students to mentor 

students at younger grade levels, one on one mentoring, 2x per week for 1.5 hours – 

COSA Law Conference: lots of legal things coming out, free speech political discourse vs 

harassment, Unions becoming more active in advocacy, pay equity, veteran’s preference 

– Received grant from Ford Family Foundation for Mini Mill Machine  

 

VI. New Business 

I. OSBA Resolution 1 – 2019‐2020 Legislative Priorities and Policies 

 

T. Pfeiffer motioned to approve OSBA Resolution 1 – 2019‐2020 Legislative Priorities and 

Policies as presented.  S. FitzGerald seconded. All in favor, motion carried.  

II. OSBA Resolution 2 – Amend OSBA Bylaws Relating to Composition of Board of Directors 

 

3



K. Watson motioned to approve OSBA Resolution 2 – Amend OSBA Bylaws relating to 

Composition of Board of Directors.  T. Pfeiffer seconded. All in favor, motion carried.   

 

III. YCSD OSBA Scholarship 

 

2 scholarships for student attending college in Fall of 2019 

 

T. Pfeiffer would like to have a scoring rubric that is tied to attendance 

K. Watson – parents attended college – target to those who are first generation college 

attenders – other board members not in favor, Board does support his suggestion of a 

scoring rubric to address content of essay 

 

Will bring back to January ‐ add attendance and essay content to scoring rubric 

 

IV. Resolution 2019‐03 – Line of Credit Loan conversion 

T. Pfeiffer motioned to approve Resolution 2019‐03 – Line of Credit Loan Conversion.  S. 

FitzGerald seconded. All in favor, motion carried.  

V. 1st Reading of Policies 

i. ECACB – Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) a.k.a Drone  
ii. GBC – Staff Ethics  
iii. GBN/JBA & JBA/GBN – Sexual Harassment  
iv. GCBDC/GDBDC – Domestic Violence, Harassment, Sexual Assault or Stalking Leave  
v. IICC – Volunteers  
vi. IGBA – Students with Disabilities – Child Identification Procedures  
vii. IGBAH – Special Education – Evaluation Procedures  
viii. IGBAJ – Special Education – Free Appropriate Education (FAPE)  
ix. IGBHE – Expanded Options Program  
x. JECA – Admission of Resident Students  
xi. JHFF – Reporting Requirement Regarding Sexual Conduct with Students  
xii. KI‐ Public Solicitation in District Facilities  

xiii. KJ‐Commercial Advertising  

 

VII. Board of Directors Comments ‐ None 

 

At 8:25pm K. Watson motioned that we move to executive session per ORS 192.660 (2)(e) Real 

Property Transactions with possible action in open session.   T. Pfeiffer seconded. All in favor, 

motion carried.  

 

At 8:43 S. FitzGerald motioned to return to open session.  T. Pfeiffer seconded.  All in favor, 

motion carried.   

 

S. FitzGerald motioned to approve the new price on the sale of the Yamhill property.  K. Watson 

seconded. All in favor, motion carried.  

With no further discussion the meeting was adjourned at 8:45pm 

Minutes by:  Michelle Rettke, Board Secretary 

4



  Female Male Total

Kindergarten 38 38 76

37 42 79

32 46 78

34 44 78

4th Grade 35 38 73

176 208 384

52 43 95

44 46 90

49 50 99

36 38 74

     5th‐8th Subtotal: 181 177 358

28 42 70

31 43 74

31 37 68

39 30 69

     9th – 12th Subtotal: 129 152 281

District Total: 486 537 1023

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YCES 336 337 337 337
YCIS 325 310 312 311
YCHS 277 277 280 281
Alliance 88 89 94 94
Total 1026 1013 1023 1023 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Kindergarten 68 70 71 71
1st Grade 70 69 68 68
2nd Grade 71 73 73 72
3rd Grade 68 67 66 66
4th Grade 59 58 59 60
18/19 Total 336 337 337 337 0 0 0 0 0 0
17/18 Total 352.5 342.5 344.25 344.25 346.75 345.25 343.25 346.25 344
16/17 Total 366 364 364 363 357 357 354 352 351 348
15/16 Total 379 380 382 379 385 381 378 379 376 376

District Enrollment Report

December 2018

1st Grade

2nd Grade

3rd Grade

     K‐ 4th Subtotal:

5th Grade

6th Grade

7th Grade

8th Grade

9th Grade

10th Grade

11th Grade

12th Grade

District Enrollment for 2018/19 School Year

YCES Enrollment for 2018/19 School Year

5



Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
5th Grade 83 81 82 84
6th Grade 79 78 79 75
7th Grade 93 91 91 91
8th Grade 70 60 60 60
18/19 325 310 312 310 0 0 0 0 0 0
17/18 Total 323 321.5 318.5 314.5 315 310.5 309.5 308.5 303.5
16/17 Total 317 320 319 318 313 313 314 312 311 311
15/16 Total 327 325 324 321 321 323 323 322 317 316

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
9th Grade 68 68 69 70
10th Grade 72 73 73 74
11th Grade 68 68 68 68
12th Grade 69 68 69 69
18/19 Total 277 277 279 281 0 0 0 0 0 0
17/18 Total 312 307 305 304 303 300 300 297 296
16/17 Total 326 325 325 322 318 324 324 323 318 311
15/16 Total 360 361 360 356 352 354 352 346 341 323

  Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Kindergarten 4 4 4 5
1st Grade 11 11 11 11
2nd Grade 7 6 6 6
3rd Grade 13 13 12 12
4th Grade 15 14 14 14
5th Grade 10 9 12 12
6th Grade 13 14 14 15
7th Grade 7 7 9 9
8th Grade 8 11 12 10
18/19 Total 88 89 94 94 0 0 0 0 0 0
17/18 Total 67.5 64 70.25 70.25 75.25 78.25 78.25 77.25 78.5 78.5
16/17 Total 50 49 49 48 49 49 52 52 62 61
15/16 Total 39 38 37 38 42 40 38 39 37 37

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Brick & Mortar
Incoming 95 95 95 95
Outgoing 111 111 111 111
Online
Incoming 67 67 67 67
Outgoing 12 12 12 12

Total Incoming 162 162 162 162 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Outgoing 123 123 123 123 0 0 0 0 0 0

Alliance Academy Enrollment 2018/19

Interdistrict Transfers 2018/19

YCIS Enrollment for 2018/19 School Year

YCHS Enrollment for 2018/19 School Year

6



 

 
 

12700 SW 72nd Ave. 
Tigard, OR  97223 

 
 
 
 
 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 

  

7



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 
 

  

8



 

 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  TERM EXPIRES 
 
 
Jami Egland, Chair  June 30, 2021 
 
 
Tim Pfeiffer, Vice Chair  June 30, 2019 
 
 
Jack Bibb  June 30, 2021 
  
 
Susan FitzGerald  June 30, 2019 
   
 
Ken Watson  June 30, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All board members will receive mail at the following address: 
 

120 N. Larch Place 
Yamhill, OR 97148 

(503) 852-6980 
 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

Charan Cline, Superintendent 
Tami Zigler, Business Manager 

9



 

 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
T A B L E   O F   C O N T E N T S 

 
****** 

 
     PAGE 
     NUMBER 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 1 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:  
 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis I-VII 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
 Government - Wide Financial Statements: 
  Statement of Net Position 4 
  Statement of Activities 5 
 Fund Financial Statements: 
  Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds 6 
  Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds  
   Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 7 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
   Balances - Governmental Funds 8 
  Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statements of Revenues, 
   Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities 9 
  Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Fiduciary Fund 10 
  Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Fiduciary Fund 11 
  
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements 12 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:  
 
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 37 
Schedule of Changes in Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability 38 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -  
    Budget and Actual: 
    General Fund 39 
    Special Revenue Fund  40 
            
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
 
 Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 
        Budget and Actual: 
        Debt Service Fund        41 
           Capital Projects Fund        42 
            Laughlin Scholarship Fund        43 
 

10



 

 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
T A B L E   O F   C O N T E N T S (CONTINUED) 

 
****** 

 
     PAGE 
     NUMBER 
 
OTHER INFORMATION: 
 
 Schedule of Bond and Interest Transactions and Balances 44 
 Schedule of Future Requirements for Retirement of Long-Term Debt 45 
 Schedule Required by the Oregon Department of Education  
  Revenue Summary – All Funds 47 
  Expenditure by Function/Object:  
   General Fund 48 
   Special Revenue Funds 49 
   Debt Service Funds 50 
   Capital Projects Funds 51 
   Fiduciary Funds 52 
 Supplemental Information as Required by the Oregon Department of Education 53 
       Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 54 

Annual Operating Data 55 
 
REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 Independent Auditor’s Report Required by Oregon State Regulations 56 
 
  
 
  
 
   

11



 

 

 
December 20, 2018 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Board of Directors 
Yamhill Carlton School District No. 1 
Yamhill County, Oregon 

 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Yamhill Carlton School District No. 1 as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.  

 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
 
 
 

-1- 

PAULY, ROGERS, AND CO., P.C. 
12700 SW 72nd Ave. Tigard, OR 97223 
(503) 620-2632  (503) 684-7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com   

12



 

 

Opinions 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Yamhill Carlton School District, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
The District adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions for the year ended June 30, 2018.  Our opinion is not  modified with 
respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, and required supplemental information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
The budgetary comparison schedules presented as Required Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of 
contents, have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and in our opinion are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is also not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. 

 

 

 

 
 
 

-2- 

13



 

 

The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information, as listed in the 
table of contents, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Information  

The listing of board members containing their term expiration dates, located before the table of contents, and 
other information, as listed in the table of contents, have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

 
Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our 
report dated December 20, 2018, on our consideration of compliance with certain provisions of laws and 
regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative 
Rules.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that 
testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TARA M KAMP, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-3- 

14

TaraK
Stamp



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

I 

 

As management of Yamhill–Carlton School District No. 1 (the District), we offer readers of the 
District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 In the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the District exceeded its liabilities 

at June 30, 2018 by $2.003 million.  
 The District’s total net position increased by $3,256,102 for the year ended June 30, 2018.   
 As of June 30, 2018, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 

$7,016,147, a decrease of $9,101,674 in comparison with the prior year, primarily due to the bond 
projects being completed. The ending fund balance includes $6,021,426 which is non-spendable or 
reserved for specific programs. $994,721 constitutes unassigned ending fund balance which is 
available for spending at the District’s discretion subject to board policy.   

 At June 30, 2018, the General Fund balance was $994,721 or 9.76% of total General Fund 
expenditures.   

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s 
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial 
statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business.  These statements include: 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, 
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving 
or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.   
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are shown in one category:  
 
Governmental activities. The District’s basic functions are shown here, such as regular and special 
education, child nutrition services, transportation, administration, and facilities acquisition and 

15



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

II 

 

construction. These activities are primarily financed through property taxes, Oregon’s State School Fund, 
and other intergovernmental revenues. 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 4 and 5 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements.  The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the 
District’s funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds – not the District as a whole.  A fund is 
a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities and objectives.  The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District are reported as 
governmental funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term 
inflows and outflows of available resources, as well as on balances of available resources at the end of 
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing 
requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful  to  compare  the  information  presented  for  governmental  funds  with  
similar  information  presented  for governmental activities in the government-wide statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long- term impact  of the District’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances are reconciled to the government-wide Statements of Net 
Position and Activities. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 6 - 8 of this report. 
 
Notes to the basic financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The 
notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 12 - 36 of this report. 
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
also presents certain Required Supplementary Information concerning the PERS schedules detailing ten 
years of pension (assets)/liabilities and pension contributions.  With the addition of GASB 73 and GASB 
75, implemented in fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the schedule of changes in other post-employment 
benefits (OPEB) liability is presented.  This requirement is to show information for ten years, however 
until a full year trend has been compiled the information is presented for which the requirement is 
available.  Along with this information is the budget to actual presentations for required major funds.  
Required supplementary information can be found on page 37 - 40 of this report.   
 
Supplementary Information presented on pages 41 - 43, includes budgetary comparison for nonmajor and 
other funds, and schedule of property tax transactions and balances.  Other information includes 

16



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

III 

 

continuing disclosures information and other financial schedules.  Other information can be found on 
pages 44 - 55d. 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted previously, net position, over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $2,003,204 as of June 30, 2018.  

 

                            

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 

NET POSITION 
    

  Governmental Activities   

      Increase   
  June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017   (Decrease)   
  ASSETS   
  Current and Other Assets $ 9,565,660 $ 17,730,219 $ (8,164,559)   
  Capital Assets   22,281,849   9,798,978    12,482,871   
  
     Total Assets   31,847,509   27,529,197   4,318,312   

                
  DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES          

   Pension-Related Deferrals    1,688,505   
   

2,286,624      (598,119)    
    

   LIABILITIES   
  Current Liabilities       3,928,002 2,959,598 968,404 
  Long-Term Obligations   27,224,758   27,906,799 (682,041)   
    
     Total Liabilities   31,152,760   30,866,397  286,363   
    
  DEFERRED INFLOWS OF  RESOURCES   
       Net Pension-Related Deferrals     380,050      202,322        177,728   
    
  NET POSITION   
       Net Investment in Capital Assets 9,032,170 (9,823,562) 18,855,732   
  Restricted   728,602 14,724,307 (13,995,705)   
  Unrestricted   (7,757,568)   (6,153,643) (1,603,925)   
    
     Total Net Position $ 2,003,204 $ (1,252,898) $ 3,256,102   
                            

 
Capital assets, which consist of the District's land, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, and 
equipment, represent about 70 .0% of total assets. The remaining assets consist mainly of investments, 
cash, prepaid pension costs, and grants and property taxes receivable. The District’s long-term liability, 
representing about 87.4% of the District’s total liabilities, is for the repayment of general obligation and 

17



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

IV 

 

limited tax pension obligation bonds.  Current liabilities, which make up about 12.6% of the District’s 
total liabilities, consist principally of payables on accounts, interest and salaries and benefits. 
 
During the current year, the District’s net position increased by $3,256,102 as compared to previous 
year’s net position prior to restatement, primarily due to the OSCIM matching grant received from the 
Oregon Department of Education, resulting in an increase of $1,317,796 in cash and cash equivalents, 
offset by an increase payables and the District’s proportionate share of net pension liability.  
 
Governmental activities.  The key elements of the change in the District’s net position for the years 
ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

                            
  YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1   
  CHANGES IN NET POSITION   
  Year Ended June 30, 2018   
    
  Governmental Activities Increase   
  June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017   (Decrease)   
  REVENUES   
  Program Revenues   
  Charges for Services $ 91,050 $ 10,582 $ 80,468   
  Operating Grants and Contributions 760,195 573,465 186,730   

    Capital Grants and Contributions 3,135,199   0   3,135,199   
  General Revenues   
  Property Taxes Levied for:   
     General Purposes 3,076,327 2,961,143 115,184   
     Debt Service 1,470,722 1,468,851 1,871   
  State Sources 6,616,692 7,937,497 (1,320,805)   
  Other Local Sources 624,535 1,700,367 (1,075,832)   
  Intermediate Sources 203,733 227,099 (23,366)   
  Federal, Unrestricted 0 0 0   

    Gain on Disposal   20,000   26,614   (6,614)   
  Earnings on Investments   255,396   30,435   224,961   
    
     Total Revenues   16,253,849   14,936,053   1,317,796   
    
  EXPENSES   
  Instruction 6,420,156 6,960,532 (540,376)   

   Support services 4,042,656 4,675,004 (632,348)   
  Enterprise and community services 360,373 414,635 (54,262)   
  Interest on long-term debt   1,276,780   1,161,700   115,080   

     Total expenses   
   

12,099,965    13,211,871   (1,111,906)   
    

   Change in Net Position 4,153,884 1,724,182 2,429,702   
            

  Net Position, Beginning as restated (2,150,680) (2,977,080) 826,400   
  Net Position, Ending $ 2,003,204 $ (1,252,898) $ 3,256,102   
                            

18



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

V 

 

Revenues increased by $1,317,796 in 2017-18 compared to the previous year, primarily due to an 
increase from the revenue of the OSCIM grant offset by a decrease in state and other local sources. 
 
Expenditures decreased by $1,111,906 overall, primarily due to an decrease of $1,175,724 of Instruction 
and Support services, primarily in relation to the GASB 68 and GASB 75 adjustments for Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB).  This is shown in the restated net position in the amount of $(897,782) for 
2016-17. 
 
FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.  For more information 
on the details behind each fund balance category see Note 1 beginning on page 18 of this report. 

At June 30, 2018, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$7,016,147. Of this amount, $6,021,426 (85.82%) of the ending fund balances constitutes nonspendable 
or restricted ending fund balance, which are amounts that are either not expendable (such as inventory or 
prepaid expenses) or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose (such as bonded debt). 
The remaining $994,721 (9.76%) of the ending fund balances is unassigned and available for spending at 
the District’s discretion. 
 
General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District.  As of June 30, 2018 the 
unassigned fund balance was $994,721. As a measure of the fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare 
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. The fund balance represents about 9.76% of total General 
Fund expenditures.  The total fund balance decreased by $145,491 as compared to prior year’s fund 
balance prior to restatement primarily due to increased expenditures in instruction.  
 
Special Revenue. The Special Revenue Fund accounts for revenue and expenditures of grants restricted 
for specific educational projects as well as internal funds segregated by the Board for the food service 
program, student activities, and other activities. Grant revenues are primarily from Federal sources. As of 
June 30, 2018 the restricted fund balance was $354,778, an increase of $1,661 from the prior year.     

Debt Service. The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $630,811, all of which is restricted for 
the payment of debt service. 
 
 
  

19



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

VI 

 

Capital Assets.  The District's investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and b u i l d i n g  
improvements, vehicles and equipment. As of June 30, 2018 the District had invested $22,281,849 in 
capital assets, net of depreciation. For more information on capital assets, see Note 4 on page 21 of this 
report. 

                        
  YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1   
  CAPITAL ASSETS   
  (net of depreciation)   
    
    
  Governmental Activities   
  June 30,   June 30, Increase   
  2018 2017   (Decrease)   
    

  Land $ 612,077 $ 
   

612,077  $ 0   
  Construction in Progress   15,626,916   3,015,411   12,611,505   

  Building and Equipment, net of depreciation   6,042,856   6,171,490   (128,634)   
    

     Total Capital Assets, net of depreciation $ 
   

22,281,849 $ 9,798,978 $ 12,482,871   
                         

 
Long-Term Debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had $22,592,073 in bonded debt 
outstanding.  This is a decrease of $1,361,580 from prior year, as the District continued to pay down 
outstanding general obligation and limited tax pension obligation bonds. Refer to Note 5 on page 22 of 
this report for detailed information. 
 
Economic factors and next year’s budget 
 
The primary factors considered in developing the budget for next year were the District’s student 
population and increases in wages and benefits for employees, including PERS related costs.    
 
Personnel expenses make up 70% of the program costs for the instruction, support and administrative 
functions.  Negotiations led to a 3% salary increase for all staff in each of the fiscal years 2016, 2017 and 
2018.  This in turn increases the associated payroll costs.  These escalating costs continue to be one of the 
most pressing concerns for the District in the attempt to balance student needs with the provision of a 
realistic compensation package for staff.   
 
Medical insurance costs are also expected to increase. The premiums for District health insurance plans 
have increased over the years, consistent with state and national trends, and this trend is expected to 
continue.   
 
Another area that will require continued attention is the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).  
For the current biennium, ending June 30, 2018, effective rates are 1.56% of salary covered under the 

20



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

VII 

 

plan for Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees and 0.43% for employees covered under the Oregon Public Services 
Retirement Plan (OPSRP).  
 
Other areas of concern include the need for textbook adoptions, equipment replacement and the continued 
need for facilities repairs and maintenance at all District schools. 
 
The District’s Budget Committee and School Board have considered all these factors while preparing the 2018-
19 budget. 
 
Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to present the user (citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors) with a 
general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability.  Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information, contact the 
Business Office, Yamhill-Carlton School District, 120 N. Larch Pl., Yamhill, Oregon 97148. 

21



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

22



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
 June 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,726,153             
Property Taxes Receivable 357,149                
Accounts Receivable 474,326                
Supply Inventory 8,032                    
Capital Assets - Nondepreciable 16,238,993           
Capital Assets - Depreciable, Net of Depreciation 6,042,856             

Total Assets 31,847,509           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
    Net Pension-Related Deferrals 1,555,479             

Total OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 133,026                

Total deferred Outflows of Resources 1,688,505             

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 1,834,328             
Interest Payable 372,908                
Payroll Liabilities 372,590                
Accrued Compensated Absences 3,479                    
Unearned Revenue 8,319                    
Noncurrent Liabilities

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 3,141,205             
Total OPEB Liability 920,049                
Due within one year 1,336,378             
Due in more than one year 23,163,504           

Total Liabilities 31,152,760           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net Pension-Related Deferrals 345,925                
Total OPEB Related Deferred Inflows 34,125                  

Total deferred Inflows 380,050                

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 9,032,170             
Restricted for:

Debt Service 630,811                
Food Service 10,178                  
Unemployment Retiree Reserve 87,613                  

Unrestricted (7,757,568)           

Total Net Position $ 2,003,204             

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

- 4 -
23



PROGRAM REVENUES

FUNCTIONS EXPENSES
CHARGES FOR 

SERVICES

OPERATING 
GRANTS AND 

CONTRIBUTIONS

CAPITAL GRANTS 
AND 

CONTRIBUTIONS

NET (EXPENSE) 
REVENUE AND 

CHANGES IN NET 
POSITION

Instruction $ 6,420,156       $ 32,346            $ 488,961             $ 3,135,199          $ (2,763,650)        

Support Services 4,042,656       58,704            22,987               -                     (3,960,965)        

Community Services 360,373          -                 248,247             -                     (112,126)           

Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,276,780       -                 -                     -                     (1,276,780)        

Total Governmental Activities $ 12,099,965     $ 91,050            $ 760,195             $ 3,135,199          (8,113,521)        

General Revenues
Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes 3,076,327         
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service 1,470,722         
State Sources 6,616,692         

Income Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Local Sources 624,535            
Intermediate Sources 203,733            

Miscellaneous 20,000              
Interest and Investment Earnings 255,396            

Total General Revenues 12,267,405       

Changes in Net Position 4,153,884         

Net Position - Beginning - Restated (2,150,680)        

Net Position - Ending $ 2,003,204         

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

- 5 - 
24



ASSETS:  
Cash and Investments $ 1,284,446     $ 35,785          $ 609,858        $ 6,796,064     $ 8,726,153     
Property Taxes Receivable 259,776        -                    97,373          -                    357,149        
Accounts Receivable 136,829        323,310        14,187          -                    474,326        
Inventory -                    8,032            -                    -                    8,032            

Total Assets $ 1,681,051     $ 367,127        $ 721,418        $ 6,796,064     $ 9,565,660     
 
 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:  

Accounts Payable $ 70,071          $ 4,030            $ -                    $ 1,760,227     $ 1,834,328     
Payroll Liabilities 372,590        -                    -                    -                    372,590        
Unearned Revenue -                    8,319            -                    -                    8,319            

          Total Liabilities 442,661        12,349          -                    1,760,227     2,215,237     

Deferred Inflows:
Unavailable Property Taxes 243,669        -                    90,607          -                    334,276        

  Fund Balances:
Non-spendable -                    8,032            -                    -                    8,032            
Restricted for:

Capital Projects -                    -                    -                    5,035,837     5,035,837     
Debt Service -                    -                    630,811        -                    630,811        
Food Service -                    10,178          -                    -                    10,178          
Unemployment Retiree Reserve -                    87,613          -                    -                    87,613          

Assigned to Student Body -                    252,640        -                    -                    252,640        
Unassigned 994,721        (3,685)           -                    -                    991,036        

Total Fund Balances 994,721        354,778        630,811        5,035,837     7,016,147     

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
and Fund Balances $ 1,681,051     $ 367,127        $ 721,418        $ 6,796,064     $ 9,565,660     

GENERAL
FUND

REVENUE
FUND TOTALSFUND

SERVICE
FUND

PROJECTS

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL

 June 30, 2018

YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

DEBT CAPITAL

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

- 6 - 
25



Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 7,016,147         

Net Capital Assets 22,281,849       

Accrued interest payable is not included as a liabilty in the governmental funds. (372,908)          

Long term Liabilities
General Obligation Bonds Payable $ (15,544,138)   
Limited Tax PERS Bond (6,214,366)    
QZAB and Note (833,569)       
Accrued Compensated Absences (3,479)           (22,595,552)      

(3,141,205)       

(920,049)          

Pension deferred inflows (345,925)          
Pension deferred outflows 1,555,479         
Total OPEB deferred inflows (34,125)            
Total OPEB deferred outflows 133,026            

(1,907,809)       

Unearned revenue related to property taxes 334,276            

Net Position $ 2,003,204         

Long-term liabilities applicable to the District's governmental activities are not due and payable in the
current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current and long
term, are reported in the Statement of Net Position.

The unamortized portion of bond premium revenue is not available to pay for current period revenues, and
therefore is not reported in the governmental funds. 

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

 June 30, 2018

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, furniture and equipment) purchased or constructed is reported as 
an expenditure in governmental funds.  The Statement of Net Position includes those capital assets among 
the assets of the District as a whole. 

The Net Pension Asset (Liability) is the difference between the total pension liability and the assets set 
aside to pay benefits earned to past and current employees and beneficiaries.

The Total OPEB Liability is liability related to the other post employment benefits for health insurace 
premiums.

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of resources related to the pension plan include differences 
between expected and actual experience, changes of assumptions, differences between 
projects and actual earning, and contributions subsequent to the measurement date.

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

- 7 -
26



REVENUES:
Taxes $ 3,045,012      $ -                    $ 1,470,722      $ -                    $ 4,515,734     
State and Local Sources 6,798,752      241,417        -                     3,315,327     10,355,496   
Federal Sources -                    504,573        -                     -                    504,573        
Charges for Services 78,816           90,245          876,270         7,168            1,052,499     
Interest 52,187           101               6,337             196,772        255,397        
Contributions and Donations 867                22,121          -                     -                    22,988          
Other 75,242           269,366        21,579           5,927            372,114        

Total Revenues 10,050,876    1,127,823     2,374,908      3,525,194     17,078,801   

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 5,803,941      708,267        -                     -                    6,512,208     
Support Services 3,864,026      153,915        -                     95,088          4,113,029     
Community Services -                    365,540        -                     -                    365,540        
Facilities Acquisition and Construction -                    -                    -                     105,939        105,939        
Debt Service 95,409           -                    2,502,836      -                    2,598,245     
Capital Outlay -                    -                    -                     12,505,515   12,505,515   

Total Expenditures 9,763,376      1,227,721     2,502,836      12,706,542   26,200,475   

Excess of Revenues Over, 
(Under) Expenditures 287,500         (99,898)         (127,928)        (9,181,348)    (9,121,674)    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of Capital Assets -                    -                    -                     20,000          20,000          
Transfers In -                    101,559        331,432         -                    432,991        
Transfers Out (432,991)       -                    -                     -                    (432,991)       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (432,991)       101,559        331,432         20,000          20,000          

Net Change in Fund Balance (145,491)       1,661            203,504         (9,161,348)    (9,101,674)    

Beginning Fund Balance 1,140,212      353,117        427,307         14,197,185   16,117,821   

Ending Fund Balance $ 994,721         $ 354,778        $ 630,811         $ 5,035,837     $ 7,016,147     

SERVICE
FUND

GENERAL
FUND

REVENUE
DEBTSPECIAL CAPITAL

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

TOTALS
PROJECTS

FUNDFUND

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

- 8 -
27



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Total Net Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ (9,101,674)       

GO Bonds 878,358$       
Bond premium 12,235           
Limited Tax PERS Bonds 254,045         
Accrued Vacation Payable (648)               
QZAB and Note Payments 229,177         

1,373,167        

Capital Asset Additions 12,742,338      
Depreciation Expense (259,467)         

(40,115)           

Unavailable property taxes recognized on a full accrual basis 31,315             

(782,294)         

190,614

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 4,153,884        

The expense related to OPEB liability represents the net changes in the liability balance from year to year and 
is not recorded in the governmental funds.

Repayment of bond principal, capital leases and vested compensated absences is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Additions to bond principal, capital leases and vested compensated absences is an expense for the Statement
of Net Position but not the governmental funds.

Fixed asset additions are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense.  This is the amount by which capital assets additions exceeds depreciation.

Interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from the amount reported in the governmental
funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use
of current financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, interest expense is recognized as the
interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds as follows:

The Pension Expense represents the changes in Net Pension Asset (Liability) from year to year due to changes 
in total pension liability and the fair value of pension plan net position available to pay pension benefits.

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

- 9 -
28



ASSETS:
Cash and Investments $ 45,092              

Total Assets 45,092              

  NET POSITION:
Restricted 45,092              

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 45,092              

LAUGHLIN

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUND
 June 30, 2018

FUND
SCHOLARSHIP

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

- 10 - 
29



REVENUES:
From Local Sources $ 1,320              

Total Revenues 1,320              

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 2,000              

Total Expenditures 2,000              

Excess of Revenues Over, 
(Under) Expenditures (680)                

Net Change in Net Position (680)                

Net Position - Beginning 45,772            

Net Position - Ending $ 45,092            

LAUGHLIN

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

FUND
SCHOLARSHIP

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

- 11 -
30



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -12-

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. The district’s significant accounting policies are described below. 
  
REPORTING ENTITY 
 
Yamhill Carlton School District No. 1 (the District) is a municipal corporation governed by a separately 
elected five-member board authorized to transact all business on the District’s behalf. The District is a 
primary government exercising financial accountability for all public education within its boundaries. The 
Board approves administrative officials. The daily functioning is under supervision of the Superintendent. As 
required by generally accepted accounting principles, all activities have been included in the basic financial 
statements. 
 
The financial statements include all funds and account groups. The District is not financially accountable for 
any other governmental entity.  Financial accountability is determined in accordance with criteria set forth in 
GAAP and Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61. Financial accountability is 
based primarily on the authority to appoint a voting majority of an organization’s governing board, ability to 
impose its will on that organization, the potential for that organization to provide specific financial benefits or 
impose specific financial burdens and that organization’s fiscal dependency.  There are no component units.  
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS) 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) 
report information on all the non-fiduciary activities.  The government-wide financial statements are reported 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Under terms of grant 
agreements, certain programs are funded by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants and general 
revenues.  Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are restricted and unrestricted resources available 
to finance the program.  It is policy to first apply cost reimbursement grant resources to such programs and 
then general revenues.  In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and Statement of 
Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were eliminated or 
reclassified.  Interfund receivables were eliminated to minimize the “grossing up” effect on assets and 
liabilities. Neither fiduciary funds nor component units that are fiduciary in nature are included. 
 
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are 
offset by program revenues.  Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from 
the program itself or from parties outside the District’s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues 
reduce the cost of the function to be financed from general revenues.  Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers who purchase or use goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function.  
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 
 
All direct expenses by function are reported in the Statement of Activities.  Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a function.  Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and 
is reported separately on the Statement of Activities.   

31



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -13-

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS) (CONTINUED) 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds.  Major individual governmental funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The accounts are organized and operated on the basis of funds.  A fund is a self-balancing set of accounts.  
Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in 
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions.  The minimum number of 
funds are maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. 
 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for general government activities.  Governmental fund types use the 
flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they 
are “measurable and available”).  “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and 
“available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on 
general long-term debt which is recognized when due, interfund transactions, and certain compensated 
absences and claims and judgments which are recognized as expenditures because they will be liquidated with 
expendable financial resources. 
 
Revenues susceptible to accrual are interest, state, county and local shared revenue and federal and state 
grants. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been 
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 
 
The following major governmental funds are reported: 
 

GENERAL FUND 
 

This fund accounts for all financial resources and expenditures except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund.  The principal revenue sources are property taxes and an apportionment from the 
State of Oregon School Support Fund. 

 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

 
This fund consists of all special revenue funds established to account for revenues and expenditures 
related to grants, student activities and other special revenues. 

 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

 
This fund accounts for the property tax revenues related to debt service and makes the debt service 
payments on the general obligation bonds. 
 
 
 

32



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -14-

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONTINUED) 

 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
 
This fund accounts for activities related to the acquisition, construction, repairing and equipping of 
facilities. Principal revenue sources are proceeds from the sale of bonds and construction excise tax.  
 

FIDUCIARY FUND – NON- MAJOR 
 

LAUGHLIN SCHOLARSHIP FUND 
 

This fund accounts for donations received from the Laughlin family.  The funds are disbursed to award recipients 
chosen annually by the Laughlin family. 

 
BUDGETS 
 
A budget is prepared and legally adopted for each governmental fund type on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting in the main program categories required by Oregon Local Budget Law.  The budgets for all 
budgeted funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles except that 
property taxes received after year-end are not considered budgetary resources in the funds, inventory is 
expensed when purchased, capital outlay is reported as an expenditure rather than capitalized, depreciation 
and amortization are not recorded and debt, vacation pay, and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
obligations are expensed when paid instead of when incurred. 

 
The budget process begins early in each fiscal year with the establishment of the budget committee. 
Recommendations are developed through early spring with the budget committee approving the budget in late 
spring.  Public notices of the budget hearing are generally published in spring with a public hearing being 
held approximately three weeks later.  The Board may amend the budget prior to adoption.  However, 
budgeted expenditures for each fund may not be increased by more than ten percent without re-publication.  
The budget is then adopted, appropriations are made, and the tax levy declared no later than June 30th. 

 
Expenditure budgets are appropriated at the following levels for each fund:  Instruction, Support Services, 
Enterprise & Community Services, Other Uses - Debt Service and Interfund Transfers, and Operating 
Contingency.            
 
Expenditures cannot legally exceed the adopted appropriation levels except in the case of grants which could 
not be estimated at the time of budget adoption.  Appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end.  Management 
may amend line items in the budget without Board approval as long as appropriation levels (the legal level of 
control) are not changed.  Supplemental appropriations may occur if the Board approves them due to 
unforeseen circumstances which could not be determined at the time the budget was adopted. 
 
Budget amounts shown in the basic financial statements reflect the original budgeted appropriation amounts.  
Expenditures of the various funds were within authorized appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE 
 
Real and personal property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.  All taxes 
levied as of the lien date and are payable in three installments on November 15, February 15, and May 15. 
Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent. 

33



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -15-

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
The cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less form the date of acquisition. 
 
FAIR VALUE INPUTS AND METHODOLOGIES AND HIERARCHY 
 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  Observable inputs are developed 
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.  Unobservable inputs are 
developed based on the best information available about the assumptions market participants would use in 
pricing the asset.  The classification of securities within the fair value hierarchy is based up on the activity 
level in the market for the security type and the inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows: 
 
Level 1 – unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or liabilities that each 
Fund has the ability to access 
Level 2 – other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 
markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, 
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield 
curves, volatilities, loss severities, credit risks and default rates) or other market–corroborated inputs) 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to the extent 
observable inputs are not available (including each Fund’s own assumptions used in determining the fair 
value of investments) 
 
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). 
Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments 
categorized in Level 3. The inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. 
 
ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 
Accounts and other receivables are comprised primarily of State School support and claims for 
reimbursement of costs under various federal and state grants.  No allowance for uncollectible accounts has 
been recorded because all receivables are considered by management to be collectible. 
 
GRANTS 
 
Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial statements as 
receivables and revenues.  Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenditures are incurred. Cash 
received from grantor agencies in excess of related grant expenditures are recorded as unearned revenue on 
the statement of net position and the balance sheet. 
 
 
 
 
 

34



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -16-

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
SUPPLY INVENTORIES 
 
School food and other cafeteria supplies are stated at average invoice cost.  Commodities purchased from the 
United States Department of Agriculture in the Food Service Fund are included in inventories at USDA 
wholesale value.  Supplies are accounted for based on the purchase method.  Donated commodities consumed 
during the year are reported as revenues and expenditures. The amount of unused donated commodities at 
balance sheet date is considered immaterial by management for reporting purposes. 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets include land, buildings & improvements, and vehicles & equipment, and are recorded at 
original cost or estimated original cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market 
value on the date donated.  Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Interest incurred during construction is not 
capitalized.  The cost of routine maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or 
materially extend asset lives are charged to expenditures as incurred and not capitalized.   Capital assets were 
depreciated, in prior years, using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 
  
 

Building and Improvements    20 to 50 years 
Land Improvements     15 to 25 years 

 Equipment      5 to 20 years 
             Vehicles                                                      10 years      
 
In the government fund financial statements, capital assets are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of 
the governmental fund upon acquisition.  Accordingly, capital assets are not capitalized and related 
depreciation is not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. 
 
COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
The liability for accrued vacation benefits reported in the government-wide statements consists of unpaid, 
accumulated annual vacation, the rate at which vacation is earned is determined by the employee’s length of 
employment.  The early retirement liability has been calculated using the accrual method for benefit amounts 
due to former employees who currently are receiving early-retirement benefits.  Early retirement benefits are 
available to a limited number of employees each year. 
 
All payables and accrued liabilities are reported on the government-wide financial statements.  In general, 
governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full 
form. Current financial resources are reported as obligation of the funds. 
  
USE OF ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and reported amounts of revenues, expense/expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
 

35



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -17-

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the governmental activities.  Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the 
life of the bonds using the straight-line method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 
premium or discount.   
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
Substantially all of the District's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS).  For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
fiduciary net position of PERS and additions to/deductions from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms.  Investments are reported at fair value in accordance with GASB Statements 68, 71, 73 and 75.   
 
PERS 
Substantially all employees participate in the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).  Contributions to 
PERS are made on a current basis as required by the plan and are charged to expenditures as funded. 
 
EARLY RETIREMENT 
Certificated employees who have reached age 55 or have 20 years of full-time employment in Oregon’s 
public schools, the last 10 years of which have been in the District, are eligible for early retirement benefits 
which are funded and charged to expenditures as payments become due to early retirees. 
 
NET POSITION 
 
Net position comprises the various net earnings from operations, nonoperating revenues, expenses and 
contributions of capital.  Net position is classified in the following three categories: 
 

Net Investment in Capital Assets – consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
Restricted – consists of external constraints placed on asset use by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation.  There are assets restricted for capital projects, debt service, food 
service and unemployment retiree reserve. 

 
  
 

36



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -18-

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
 

Unrestricted – consists of all other assets that are not included in the other categories previously 
mentioned. 

 
The District’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which 
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. 
 
FUND BALANCE 
 
In March 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type 
Definitions. The objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by 
providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the 
existing governmental fund-type definitions. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints 
imposed on the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance 
classifications of reserved, designated, and unreserved/undesignated were replaced with five classifications – 
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.  

 Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are not in a spendable form. The nonspendable 
fund balance represents inventories.  

 Restricted fund balance represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific 
purpose (such as debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, or other governments) or 
are restricted by law (constitutionally or by enabling legislation).  

 Committed fund balance represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a particular 
purpose. The use of committed funds would be approved by resolution. 

 Assigned fund balance represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use 
resources for specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.  
Intent can be stipulated by the governing body or by an official to whom that authority has been given 
by the governing body.   

 Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the General Fund.  Only the General Fund 
may report a positive unassigned fund balance.  Other governmental funds would report any negative 
residual fund balance as unassigned. 

 
The District has approved the following order of spending regarding fund balance categories: Restricted 
resources are spent first when both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) resources 
are available for expenditures.  When unrestricted resources are spent, the order of spending is committed (if 
applicable), assigned (if applicable) and unassigned.   

 

 

 

 

37



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -19-

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for outflows 
of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net positions that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as on outflow of 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The government has two items that qualify for reporting in the 
category. Net Pension Related Deferrals and Total OPEB Related Deferrals related to the pension plan 
include differences between expected and actual experience, changes of assumptions, differences between 
projects and actual earning, and contributions subsequent to the measurement date. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The item unavailable revenue, which arises only under a 
modified accrual basis of accounting, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet.  The 
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from one source: property taxes.  These amounts are deferred 
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.  The government 
has two types of items, which arises under full accrual accounting in the Statement of Net Position.  The 
Statement of Net Position reports deferred inflows from a Net Deferred Pension Asset and a Total OPEB 
related deferral resulting from actuarial valuations and contributions subsequent to measurement date. 
 
2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
DEPOSITS 
 
Deposits with financial institutions are comprised of bank demand deposits.  The total bank balance per the 
bank statements is $560,222, of which $365,059 is covered by federal depository insurance. The remainder is 
covered by the collateral held in a multiple financial institutions collateral pool administered by the Oregon 
State Treasurer.  The insurance and collateral requirements for deposits are established by banking regulations 
and Oregon law.  State statutes (ORS 295.002) allow public officials to deposit public funds in one or more 
depositories currently qualified pursuant to ORS 295.001 to 295.108.  As long as the bank depository has 
entered into an agreement (ORS 295.008(2)(b)) and has deposited securities pursuant to state statutes (ORS 
295.015(1)), there may be deposits at any one bank depository and its branches, a sum in excess of the 
amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 
 
Cash and Investments at June 30, 2018, (recorded at fair value) consisted of:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Demand Deposits:
Checking 491,883$          Governmental Funds 8,726,153$       
Savings 3,298 Fiduciary Funds 45,092
Certificate of Deposit 52,115
Wells Fargo PERS 5,013
LGIP 8,218,936

Total 8,771,245$       Total 8,771,245$       

38



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -20-

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
  
INVESTMENTS 
 
State statutes governing cash management are followed.  Statutes authorize investing in banker’s acceptances, 
time certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, obligations of the United States and its agencies and 
instrumentalities, and the Oregon State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool.   
 
Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short-Term Fund, 
which is an external investment pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool, and is not registered 
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. Fair value of the LGIP is 
calculated at the same value as the number of pool shares owned.  The unit of account is each share held, and 
the value of the position would be the fair value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the number of shares 
held.  Investments in the Short-Term Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and 
portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, which establish diversification 
percentages and specify the types and maturities of investments. The portfolio guidelines permit securities 
lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements.  The 
fund’s compliance with all portfolio guidelines can be found in their annual report when issued.  The LGIP 
seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP is neither insured nor guaranteed by 
the FDIC or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks to maintain the value of share 
investments at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in the pool.  We intend to measure 
these investments at book value since it approximates fair value. The pool is comprised of a variety of 
investments.  These investments are characterized as a level 2 fair value measurement in the Oregon Short 
Term Fund’s audited financial report.  Amounts in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool 
are not required to be collateralized. The audited financial reports of the Oregon Short Term Fund can be 
found here: 
 
http://www.oregon.gov/treasury/Divisions/Investment/Pages/Oregon-Short-Term-Fund-(OSTF).aspx  
If the link has expired please contact the Oregon Short Term Fund directly. 
 

There were the following investments and maturities at June 30, 2018: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Credit Risk – Deposits 
 
In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, deposits may not be returned. The 
District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2018, none of the bank balance 
was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was fully insured. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when the local 
government has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed by the OSTFB.  
There are no investments that have a maturity date beyond three months. 

Investment Maturities (in months)
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 3 3-17 18-59

Wells Fargo PERS 5,013$             5,013$              
State Treasurer's Investment Pool 8,218,936 8,218,936 -$           -$           

Total 8,223,949$      8,223,949$        -$           -$           

39



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -21-

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Credit Risk – Investments 
 
Oregon Revised Statutes does not limit investments as to credit rating for securities purchased from US 
Government Agencies or USGSE.  The State Investment Pool is not rated. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
At June 30, 2018, 100% of total investments were in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.  State statutes do 
not limit the percentage of investments in this instrument.  
 
3. ACCOUNTS/GRANTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Special revenue fund grants receivable are comprised of claims for reimbursement of costs under various 
federal and state grant programs.  Property taxes are levied and become a lien on all taxable property as of 
July 1. Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.  No allowance for uncollectible 
accounts has been recorded because all receivables are considered by management to be collectible.   
 
4. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Capital assets activity for the year was as follows:

Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 612,077       $ -                  $ -            $ 612,077       

Construction in Progress 3,015,411    12,611,505   -            15,626,916   

Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,627,488    12,611,505   -            16,238,993   

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements 11,219,236   41,274         -            11,260,510   
Vehicles & Equipment 469,718       89,559         (16,727)  542,550       

Total capital assets being depreciated 11,688,954   130,833       (16,727)  11,803,060   

Less total accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements (5,317,402)   (217,347)      -            (5,534,749)   
Vehicles & Equipment (200,062)      (42,120)        16,727    (225,455)      

Total accumulated depreciation (5,517,464)   (259,467)      16,727    (5,760,204)   

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,171,490    (128,634)      -            6,042,856     

Total Capital Assets, Net $ 9,798,978    $ 22,281,849   

Balance
June 30, 2018July 1, 2017 Additions Deletions

40



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -22-

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
Depreciation expense for the year was charged to the following programs: 

 

Depreciation for the year was charged to the following programs:

Instruction 153,738$         
Support Services 97,099             
Enterprise and Community Services 8,630              

259,467$         

 
 

5. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
A summary of debt transactions of the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Interest
Issue Date Rates

2015 Refunding 1.97% $ 3,685,955    $ 2,532,496     $ -                  $ 588,358     $ 1,944,138     $ 617,409     
2003 PERS UAL 1.50-5.68% 9,421,889    6,468,411     -                  254,045     6,214,366     252,540     
2007 QZAB 1.49% 1,000,000    470,000        -                  65,000       405,000       65,000       
2009 QZAB 0.00% 1,000,000    499,998        -                  71,429       428,569       71,429       
2016 GO Bond 2-4.25% 14,200,000  13,890,000   -                  290,000     13,600,000   330,000     
2013 Note 2.89% 225,000      92,748          -                  92,748       -                  -                

Total Governmental Activities $ 23,953,653   $ -                  $ 1,361,580   $ 22,592,073   $ 1,336,378  

Bond Premium $ 1,920,044     $ -                  $ 12,235       $ 1,907,809     $ -                

Total with premium $ 25,873,697   $ -                  $ 1,373,815   $ 24,499,882   $ 1,336,378  

Redeemed
Matured and Due Within

One Year
Outstanding

June 30, 2018
Issue

Amount July 1, 2017
Outstanding

Issued

41



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -23-

5. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
For further detail on debt service, see the ‘Schedule of Bond and Interest Transactions and Balances’ and 
‘Schedule of Future Requirements for Retirement of Long-Term Debt’ in the Other Information section of 
this report.  
 
Bonds

Fiscal Year
Ended Principal Interest Total

2018-19 1,199,949$     1,252,882$        2,452,831$          
2019-20 1,265,781       1,280,450          2,546,231            
2020-21 1,335,951       1,312,855          2,648,806            
2021-22 698,152          1,334,470          2,032,622            
2022-23 738,671          1,373,452          2,112,123            
2024-28 8,155,000       2,870,078          11,025,078          
2029-33 4,665,000       1,338,200          6,003,200            
2034-37 3,700,000       308,200             4,008,200            

Total 21,758,504$   11,070,587$      32,829,091$        
 

 
 
Notes Payable

Fiscal Year
Ended Principal Interest Total

2018-19 136,429$        6,034$              142,463$             
2019-20 136,429          5,066                141,495               
2020-21 136,429          4,098                140,527               
2021-22 141,429          3,129                144,558               
2022-23 141,429          2,088                143,517               
2024-27 141,429          1,043                142,472               

Total 833,569$        21,458$             855,029$             
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -24-

6. PENSION PLAN 

Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 
 
Plan Description – The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit plan.  All benefits of the system are established by the legislature pursuant 
to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A.  Oregon PERS produces an independently audited 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be found at:   
 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/documents/financials/CAFR/2017-CAFR.pdf 
If the link is expired please contact Oregon PERS for this information. 
 

a. PERS Pension (Chapter 238).  The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to new members 
hired on or after August 29, 2003. 

i) Pension Benefits.  The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life.  It may be selected from 13 
retirement benefit options.  These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds.  The basic 
benefit is based on years of service and final average salary.  A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire 
employees, and 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service 
and the final average salary.  Benefits may also be calculated either by a formula plus annuity (for members 
who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater benefits results. 
A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement 
allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years 
of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire members). 
General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire members are eligible after 
reaching age 50. Tier 1 general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 
with fewer than 30 years of service. Police and fire member benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior 
to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier 2 members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The 
ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 
2003. 

ii) Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of 
the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest).  In addition, the beneficiary will 
receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided on or more of the 
following contributions are met: 

 member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death, 

 member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment, 

 member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or 

 member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death. 

iii) Disability Benefits.  A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disable from 
other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit.  A disability resulting from a 
job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits 
regardless of the length of PERS-covered service.  Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, 
service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit. 

iv) Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities 
investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the 
market value equity investments.  Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through 
cost-of-living changes.  The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual benefit. 

 
b) OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB).  The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program provides 

benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 

43



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -25-

6. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

i) Pension Benefits.  This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions.  
Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:   
Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.  
Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit.  
To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual must have been employed continuously as a 
police and fire member for at least five years immediately preceding retirement.   
General service:  1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.  
Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit. 
A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates:  the date the 
member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal 
retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective. 

ii) Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally 
required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that 
would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member. 

iii) Disability Benefits.  A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member 
becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability 
benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the 
disability occurred. 

iv) Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through 
cost-of-living changes.  The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual benefit. 

 
Contributions – PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates.  
These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to 
pay benefits when due.  The funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other 
Postemployment Benefit Plans.  Employer contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 
2015 actuarial valuation, which became effective July 1, 2017. The state of Oregon and certain schools, 
community colleges, and political subdivision have made unfunded actuarial liability payments and their rates 
have been reduced. Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018 were $44,344, excluding amounts to 
fund employer specific liabilities. In addition approximately $292,197 in employee contributions were paid or 
picked up by the District in fiscal 2018. Approximately $876,270 was charged for the year ended June 30, 2018 as 
PERS benefit expenditures to be used for bond payments as they became due. At June 30, 2018, the District 
reported a net pension liability of $3,141,205 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The pension 
liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2015.  The District’s proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to 
the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  As of the measurement date of 
June 30, 2017, the District’s proportion was .023 percent. Pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 
$782,296. 
 
The rate in effect for the year ended June 30, 2018 was: 

(1) Tier 1/Tier 2 – 1.56% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

44



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -26-

6. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
The amount of contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of the 
net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

  
Year ending June 30, Amount
2019 274,728$          
2020 530,170            
2021 405,953            
2022 (45,128)             
2023 (514)                  
Thereafter -                    
Total 1,165,210$       

 
All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon 
PERS system-wide GASB 68 reporting summary dated February 16, 2018. Oregon PERS produces an 
independently audited CAFR which can be found at: 
 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/documents/financials/CAFR/2017-CAFR.pdf 

 
Actuarial Valuations – The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019, 
were set using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.  For the Tier One/Tier Two component of 
the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) 
an amount for normal cost (estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by employees during 
the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, 
which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized 
over 20 years.   
 
For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced 
an employer rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to 
finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year),  

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 151,910                  $ -                        

Changes in assumptions 572,586                  -                        

Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 32,362                    -                        

Net changes in proportionate share 754,277                  2,779                    

Differences between District contributions 

and proportionate share of contributions -                         343,146                

Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (below) 1,511,135               345,925                

District contributions subsequent to measuring date 44,344                    -                        

Deferred outflow (inflow) of resources $ 1,555,479               $ 345,925                

45



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -27-

6. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

(b) an actuarially determined amount for funding a disability benefit component, and (c) an amount for 
the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period 
with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years.  
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
 

 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future.  Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years.  
The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2015 Experience Study which is reviewed for the 
four-year period ending December 31, 2015. 
 
Assumed Asset Allocation: 

 

 
            (Source: June 30, 2017 PERS CAFR; p. 92) 
 

Asset Class/Strategy Low Range High Range OIC Target
Cash 0.0% 3.0% 0.0%
Debt Securities 15.0% 25.0% 20.0%
Public Equity 32.5% 42.5% 37.5%
Real Estate 9.5% 15.5% 12.5%
Private Equity 14.0% 21.0% 17.5%
Alternative Equity 0.0% 12.5% 12.5%
Opportunity Portfolio 0.0% 3.0% 0.0%
Total 100%

Valuation Date December 31, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2017

Experience Study Report 2014, Published September 23, 2015

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method

Amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered amortization bases over a 
closed period; Tier One/Tier Two UAL is amortized over 20 years and OPSRP 
pension UAL is amortized over 16 years

Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Inflation rate 2.50 percent

Investment rate of return 7.50 percent
Projected salary increase 3.5 percent overall payroll growth 

Cost of Living 
Adjustment

Blend of 2% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/.15%) in accordamce with Moro
decision, blend based on service.
Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:
RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per Scale BB, with collar adjustments and set-
backs as described in the valuation. Active members: Mortality rates are a
percentage of healthy retiree rates that vary by group, as described in the
valuation. Disabled retirees: Mortality rates are a percentage (70% for males and
95% for females) of the RP-2000 sex-distinct, generational per scale BB, disabled
mortality table.Mortality

46



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -28-

6. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 
 
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in 
July 2015 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital 
market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table 
below shows Milliman’s assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that 
time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was 
used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based 
on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. 
These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking 
capital market economic model. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       (Source: June 30, 2017 PERS CAFR; p. 69) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Asset Class Target

Compound 
Annual Return 

(Geometric)
Core Fixed Income 8.00% 4.00%
Short-Term Bonds 8.00% 3.61%
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.00% 5.42%
High Yield Bonds 1.00% 6.20%
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 15.75% 6.70%
Small Cap US Equities 1.31% 6.99%
Micro Cap US Equities 1.31% 7.01%
Developed Foreign Equities 13.13% 6.73%
Emerging Market Equities 4.12% 7.25%
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.88% 7.22%
Private Equity 17.50% 7.97%
Real Estate (Property) 10.00% 5.84%
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50% 6.69%
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 2.50% 4.64%
Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.63% 6.72%
Timber 1.88% 5.85%
Farmland 1.88% 6.37%
Infrastructure 3.75% 7.13%
Commodities 1.88% 4.58%
Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.50%

47



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -29-

6. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent for the 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from the plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at 
the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined.  Based on those assumptions, the pension 
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments  
for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability.   
 
Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
rate – The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
(6.50 percent) or 1-perentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date 
 
As described above, GASB 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be determined based 
on the benefit terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit terms that occurs after 
that date are reflected in amounts reported for the subsequent Measurement Date. However, Paragraph 
80f of GASB 68 requires employers to briefly describe any changes between the Measurement Date 
and the employer’s reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the employer’s share 
of the collective Net Pension Liability, along with an estimate of the resulting change, if available.  
 
At its July 28, 2017 meeting, the PERS Board lowered the assumed rate to 7.2 percent. For member 
transactions, this rate will take effect January 1, 2018. The current assumed rate is 7.5 percent and has 
been in effect for member transactions since January 1, 2016. 
 
Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
A deferred compensation plan is available to employees wherein they may execute an individual 
agreement with the District for amounts earned by them to not be paid until a future date when certain 
circumstances are met. These circumstances are: termination by reason of death, disability, resignation, 
or retirement. Payment to the employee will be made over a period not to exceed 15 years. The deferred 
compensation plan is one which is authorized under IRC Section 457 and has been approved in its 
specifics by a private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service. The assets of the plan are held by the 
administrator for the sole benefit of the plan participants and are not considered assets or liabilities of 
the District. 
 
 

 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase 

(6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)

District's proportionate share of 

the net pension liability 5,353,186$          3,141,205$          1,291,578$          

48



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -30-

6. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP) 
 
Plan Description: 
Employees of the District are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the benefits of OPERS are 
established by the Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 
238A. Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 
2003. Chapter 238A created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists of the 
Defined Benefit Pension Program and the Individual Account Program (IAP). Membership includes 
public employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. PERS members retain their existing defined 
benefit plan accounts, but member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP account. OPSRP 
is part of OPERS, and is administered by the OPERS Board. 
 
Pension Benefits: 
Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their defined contribution plan. 
An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the 
rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, 
the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 
hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the 
date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member 
dies. Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee 
account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments 
over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 
minimum distribution limit. 
 
Death Benefits: 
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account 
balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a 
retired member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the 
remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment. 
 
Contributions: 
Employees of the District pay six (6) percent of their covered payroll. The District did not make any 
optional contributions to member IAP accounts for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Systems’ (PERS) Retiree Health Insurance Account (RHIA) 
 
Plan Description: 
As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) the District contributes to the 
Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit plan administered by OPERS. 
RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums 
of eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420 established this trust fund. Authority to 
establish and amend the benefit provisions of RHIA reside with the Oregon Legislature. The plan is 
closed to new entrants after January 1, 2004. OPERS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by 
writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700.  
 
 

49



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -31-

6. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Funding Policy: 
Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of the 
plan members and the participating employers were established and may be amended only by the 
Oregon Legislature. ORS require that an amount equal to $60 dollars or the total monthly cost of 
Medicare companion health insurance premiums coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid from the 
Retirement Health Insurance Account established by the employer, and any monthly cost in excess of 
$60 dollars shall be paid by the eligible retired member in the manner provided in ORS 238.410. To be 
eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium cost the member must: (1) have eight 
years or more of qualifying service in OPERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance 
as if the member had eight years or more of creditable service in OPERS, (2) receive both Medicare 
Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in an OPERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or 
dependent of a deceased OPERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the 
subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from OPERS or (2) was insured at 
the time the member died and the member retired before May 1, 1991. 
 
 
Participating districts are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by 
OPERS, and the District currently contributes 0.50% of annual covered OPERS payroll and 0.43% of 
OPSRP payroll under a contractual requirement in effect until June 30, 2019. The OPERS Board of 
Trustees sets the employer contribution rates based on the annual required contribution of the 
employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to 
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the 
plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The District’s contributions to RHIA for the years ended 
June 30, 2016, 2017 and 2018 were $23,745, $23,540 and $22,564, respectively, which equaled the 
required contributions each year. 

 
At June 30, 2018, the District’s net OPEB liability/(asset) and deferred inflows and outflows were not 
considered significant by management and were not accrued on the government wide statements. 
 
Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available 
online, or by contacting PERS at the following address:  PO Box 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700. 
 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

50



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -32-

7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 
 

Plan Description: The District operates a single-employer retiree benefit plan that provides postemployment 
health, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouses.  There are active and 
retired members in the plan. All classes of employee are eligible to continue coverage upon retirement. 
Qualified spouses, domestic partners, and children may qualify for coverage. Coverage for retirees and 
eligible dependents continues until Medicare eligibility for each individual (or until dependent children 
become ineligible).  
 
Benefits and eligibility for members are established through the collective bargaining agreements.  The post-
retirement healthcare plan is established in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303.  ORS 
stipulated that for the purpose of establishing healthcare premiums, the rate must be based on all plan 
members, including both active employees and retirees.  The difference between retiree claims cost, which 
because of the effect of age is generally higher in comparison to all plan members, and the amount of retiree 
healthcare premiums represents the District’s implicit employer contribution. The District did not establish an 
irrevocable trust (or equivalent arrangement) to account for the plan. 
 
Funding Policy: The benefits from this program are paid by the District on a self-pay basis and the required 
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you go financing requirements. There is not obligation on the part 
of the District to fund these benefits in advance.  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The District engaged an actuary to perform an evaluation as of June 30, 
2018 using entry age normal, level percent of salary Actuarial Cost Method. The Single Employer Pension 
Plan liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods including the 
measurement: 
 
               Discount Rate per year    3.58% 
               General Inflation Rate per year   2.50%  
              Salary Scale per year    3.50%  
 
   Health Care Cost Trends: 
 

Year Year
2017 4.25       % 2042-2043 6.00       %
2018 5.50       2044-2048 5.75       
2019 6.75       2049-2057 5.50       

2020-2030 5.00       2058-2064 5.25       
2031-2032 5.25       2065-2067 5.00       

2033 5.50       2068-2069 4.75       
2034 6.00       2070-2073 4.50       

2035-2041 6.25       2074+ 4.25       

Trend Trend

 
 

Mortality rates were based on rates adopted by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) for 
its December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation of retirement benefits. 
 
Turnover rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS and 
vary by years of service.  
 

51



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -33-

7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 
(CONTINUED) 

 
Disability rates were not used.  
 
Retirement rates were based on Oregon PERS assumptions.  Annual rates are based on age, Tier / OPSRP, 
and duration of service. 
 
The projection of benefits for financial reporting purpose does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects 
of legal or contractual funding limitations.  
 
Changes in Medical Benefit OPEB Liability: 
 

Changes in Medical Benefit OPEB Liability 

Balance at June 30, 2017 1,011,762$       

Changes for the Year:

Service Cost 58,950               

Interest 28,538               

Changes of Benefit Terms -                     

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience -                     

Changes of Assumptions or Other Input (39,457)             

Benefit Payments (139,744)           

Net Changes for the Year (91,713)             
Total OPEB Liability at June 30, 2018 920,049$          

 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability to Changes in Discount and Trend Rates: The 
following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL), calculated using the discount rate 
of 3.75 percent, as well as what the liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate 1-percentage-
point lower (2.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.75 percent) than the current rate:  

 
 

June 30, 2018 1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

Total OPEB Liability 974,477$                     920,049$                     868,566$                     

The following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL), calculated using trend rate of 
6.5 percent graded down to 5.0 percent, as well as what the liability would be if it was calculated using a trend 
rate 1-percentage-point lower (5.5 percent graded down to 4.0 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.5 
percent graded down to 6.0 percent) than the current rate: 
 

June 30, 2018 1% Current 1%

Decrease Trend Rate Increase

Total OPEB Liability 860,895$                     920,049$                     988,678$                     

 

52



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -34-

7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 
(CONTINUED) 

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ -                    $ -                  
Changes in assumptions (34,125)             -                  
Benefit Payments -                    133,026          
Deferred outflow (inflow) of resources $ (34,125)             $ 133,026          

 
 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

 
 

Year ending June 30 Amount

2019 (5,332)$       

2020 (5,332)         

2021 (5,332)         

2022 (5,332)         

2023 (5,332)         

Thereafter (7,465)         

Total (34,125)$     

 
 
8.   COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, 
principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may 
constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by 
the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the District expects such amount, if any to be immaterial. 
A substantial portion of operating funding is received from the State of Oregon.  State funding is determined 
through state wide revenue projections that are paid to individual school districts based on pupil counts and 
other factors in the state school fund revenue formula.  Since these projections and pupil counts fluctuate, there 
can be increases or decreases in revenue.  Due to these future uncertainties at the state level, the future effect on 
operations cannot be determined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -35-

9.  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to limited torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters.  The District has joined with other school districts in the 
state, which are participating members of United Schools Insurance Program of Oregon, a public entity risk 
pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for member governments.  The 
District has an annually renewable contract to pay United Schools Insurance Program of Oregon an annual 
premium for its general liability, property liability, automobile liability, boiler and machinery, comprehensive 
crime, and umbrella insurance coverage. 
 
The District carries commercial insurance for all other losses, including workers’ compensation and employee 
health and accident insurance.  Premiums to the health insurance company are paid through a combination of 
employer contributions and payroll withholdings for eligible employees.  The District came under the State 
Unemployment Act as of July 1, 1974.  The District has elected to pay State Unemployment insurance to the 
State of Oregon to pay for any claims paid to former employees.   There have been no significant reductions in 
coverage from the prior years and settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years. 
 
 
10.   INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

 
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The interfund transfers are budgeted amounts from the General Fund to cover the early retiree benefits in the 
Special Revenue Fund and to cover the payments for the QZAB loans and PERS UAL debt in the Debt 
Service Fund. 
 
11.   PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS 
 
The State of Oregon imposes a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and non-school government 
operations.  School operations included community colleges, local school districts, and education service 
districts.  The limitation provided that property taxes for school operations are limited to $5.00 for each 
$1,000 of property market value.  The limitation does not apply to taxes levied for principal and interest on 
general obligation bonded debt.  The result of this requirement has been that school districts have become 
more dependent upon state funding and less dependent upon property tax revenues as their major source of 
operating revenue. 
 
The State further reduced property taxes by replacing the previous constitutional limits on tax bases with a rate 
and value limit in 1997.  This reduction is accomplished by rolling property values back to their 1995-96 values 
less 10% and limiting future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3% per year, subject to certain 
exceptions.  Taxes levied to support bonded debt are exempted from the reductions.  The State Constitution sets 
restrictive voter approval requirements for most tax and many fee increases and new bond issues, and requires 
the State to minimize the impact to school districts from the impact of the tax cuts. 
 

Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund -$                      432,991$           
Special Revenue Funds 101,559             -                    
Debt Service Fund 331,432             -                    

432,991$           432,991$           

54



YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 -36-

12.   RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 
The District implemented GASB #75, Formerly GASB #45, for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
which resulted in a restatement of beginning net position for 2017-2018 in the amount of (897,782).

55



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

56



SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

2018 0.02 % $ 3,141,205             $ 5,219,307        60.2                % 83.1 %

2017 0.02 3,233,657             5,185,832        62.4                80.5

2016 0.01 354,405                4,767,772        7.4                  91.9

2015 0.01 (146,649)               4,758,828        (3.1)                 103.6

2014 0.01 330,156                4,182,881        7.9                  92

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurment date.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend

has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

2018 $ 44,344           $ 44,344                   $ $ 4,860,496       0.9                           %
2017 23,856           23,856                   -                   5,219,307       0.5                           
2016 88,072           88,072                   -                   5,185,832       1.7                           
2015 148,632         148,632                -                   4,767,772       3.1                           
2014 81,797               81,797                   -                       4,758,828       1.7                           

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurement date.

These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend

has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

required statutorily required deficiency covered of covered
contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

payroll payroll

Contributions in Contributions
Statutorily relation to the Contribution Employer's as a percent

liability

a percentage of 

Ended  the net pension  of the net pension covered of covered the total pension

Year proportion of proportionate share YCSD percentage 

June 30, liability (NPL) liability (NPL)

(a) (b) (b/c) Plan fiduciary

Employer's Employer's (c) NPL as a net position as

- 37 -
57



Total OPEB Liability at June 30, 2017 $ 1,011,762         

Changes for the year:
Service Cost $ 58,950             
Interest 28,538             
Changes of Benefit Terms -                       
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience -                       
Changes of Assumptions or Other Input (39,457)            
Benefit Payments (139,744)          

Net Changes for the Year (91,713)             

Total OPEB Liability at June 30, 2018 $ 920,049            

Covered Payroll 4,860,496         

Net Single Employer Pension Plan as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 18.93%

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a full year trend 
has been compiled, information is presented for the years for which the required supplementary schedule information is available. 
The District implemented GASB 73 and GASB 75 in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

- 38 -58



ORIGINAL 
  BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUES:
Local Sources $ 2,967,986        $ 3,068,984        $ 3,252,124        $ 183,140         
Other local Revenue 122,902           105,140           -                      (105,140)       
Intermediate Sources 187,369           187,369           203,733           16,364          
State Sources 6,444,787        6,686,927        6,595,019        (91,908)         

Total Revenues 9,723,044        10,048,420      10,050,876      2,456            

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 5,645,964        5,947,218        (1) 5,803,941        143,277         
Support Services 4,009,500        4,064,285        (1) 3,864,026        200,259         
Debt Service 48,423             96,846             (1) 95,409             1,437            
Contingencies 321,670           400,000           (1) -                      400,000         

Total Expenditures 10,025,557      10,508,349      9,763,376        744,973         

Excess of Revenues (302,513)         (459,929)         287,500           747,429         
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of Capital Assets -                      -                      -                      -                    
Transfers Out (447,487)         (447,487)         (1) (432,991)         14,496          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (447,487)         (447,487)         (432,991)         14,496          

Net Change in Fund Balance (750,000)         (907,416)         (145,491)         761,925         

Beginning Fund Balance 750,000           907,416           1,140,212        232,796         

Ending Fund Balance $ -                      $ -                      $ 994,721           $ 994,721         

(1)  Appropriation Level

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

  VARIANCE
TO FINAL

FINAL
  BUDGET

BUDGET
POSITIVE

(NEGATIVE)

YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

- 39 - 
59



YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

REVENUES: BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

Local Sources $ 626,958            $ 626,958            $ 381,833           $ (245,125)            
Intermediate Sources -                   -                   2,714               2,714                 
State Sources 197,964            212,772            238,703           25,931               
Federal Sources 603,580            603,580            504,573           (99,007)              

Total Revenues 1,428,502         1,443,310         1,127,824        (315,487)            

EXPENDITURES:
 

Instruction 1,067,603         1,082,411         (1) 708,267           374,144             
Support Services 226,921            226,921            (1) 153,915           73,006               
Community & Enterprise 438,243            438,243            (1) 365,540           72,703               

Total Expenditures 1,732,767         1,747,575         1,227,721        519,854             

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (304,265)          (304,265)          (99,898)            204,367             

Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Transfers In 116,055            116,055            101,559           (14,496)              

Total Other Financing Sources 116,055            116,055            101,559           (14,496)              

Net Change in Fund Balance (188,210)          (188,210)          1,661               189,871             

Beginning Fund Balance 188,210            188,210            353,117           164,907             

Ending Fund Balance $ -                       $ -                       $ 354,778           $ 354,778             

(1) Appropriation Level

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

- 40 -
60



  VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

REVENUES: BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

Local Sources $ 2,400,806     $ 2,400,806     $ 2,356,952      $ (43,854)          
State Sources 12,000          12,000          17,956           5,956              

Total Revenues 2,412,806     2,412,806     2,374,908      (37,898)          

EXPENDITURES:
 

Debt Service 2,949,038     2,949,038     (1) 2,502,836      446,202         

Total Expenditures 2,949,038     2,949,038     2,502,836      446,202         

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (536,232)       (536,232)       (127,928)        408,304         

Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Transfers In 331,432        331,432        331,432         -                 

Total Other Financing Sources 331,432        331,432        331,432         -                 

Net Change in Fund Balance (204,800)       (204,800)       203,504         408,304         

Beginning Fund Balance 204,800        204,800        427,307         222,507         

Ending Fund Balance $ -                $ -                $ 630,811         $ 630,811         

(1) Appropriation Level

DEBT SERVICE FUND

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

- 41 -
61



VARIANCE
TO FINAL 
BUDGET

ORIGINAL     FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET  BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:
Local Sources $ 50,000          $ 50,000          $ 389,995         $ 339,995         
State Sources 3,000,000      3,135,200      3,135,199      (1)                  

Total Revenues 3,050,000      3,185,200      3,525,194      339,994         

EXPENDITURES:  
Support Services 175,000         175,000         (1) 95,088           79,912          
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 18,050,000    17,005,034    (1) 12,611,453    4,393,581      

Total Expenditures 18,225,000    17,180,034    12,706,542    4,473,492      

Excess of Revenues Over (15,175,000)  (13,994,834)  (9,181,347)     (4,133,498)    
(Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Sale of Capital Assets -                    -                    20,000           20,000          

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) -                    -                    20,000           20,000          

Net Change in Fund Balance (15,175,000)  (13,994,834)  (9,161,347)     (4,113,498)    

Beginning Fund Balance 15,175,000    13,994,834    14,197,185    202,351         

Ending Fund Balance $ -                    $ -                    $ 5,035,837      $ 5,035,837      

(1) Appropriation Level

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON
YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

- 42 -
62



ORIGINAL 
  BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUES:
Local Sources $ 2,000           $ 2,000          $ 1,320           $ (680)               

Total Revenues 2,000           2,000          1,320           (680)               

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 2,000           2,000          (1) 2,000           -                     

Total Expenditures 2,000           2,000          2,000           -                     

Net Change in Fund Balance -                   -                 (680)             (680)               

Beginning Fund Balance 40,000         40,000        45,772         5,772             

Ending Fund Balance $ 40,000         $ 40,000        $ 45,092         $ 5,092             

(1)  Appropriation Level

LAUGHLIN SCHOLARSHIP FUND

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

  VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

FINAL POSITIVE
  BUDGET (NEGATIVE)

- 43 - 
63



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
OTHER INFORMATION

64



BONDS & BONDS
COUPONS REDEEMED AND

DATE MATURING COUPONS PAID 
OF DURING DURING
ISSUE THE YEAR THE YEAR

April 21, 2003 $ 254,045                         $ 254,045                         
June 12, 2007 65,000                           65,000                           
July 1, 2009 71,429                           71,429                           
July 1, 2013 92,748                           92,748                           
March 17, 2015 588,358                         588,358                         
July 19, 2016 290,000                         290,000                         

Total $ 1,361,580                      $ 1,361,580                      

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1

 SCHEDULE OF BOND AND INTEREST TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

- 44 -
65



On March 17, 2015, $3,685,955 of General
Obligation Refunding Bonds were
issued.

2018-19 $ 617,409               $ 38,300             1.97%
2019-20 645,172               26,137             1.97%
2020-21 681,557               13,427             1.97%

$ 1,944,138            $ 77,864             

Oregon School Boards Association Limited
Tax Pension Obligation Bonds Series 2003,
Wells Fargo Bank Northwest, NA, Trustee
 - Original Balance $9,421,889

2018-19 $ 252,540               $ 693,832           6.08%
2019-20 250,609               740,763           6.15%
2020-21 249,394               791,978           6.22%
2021-22 248,152               843,220           6.26%
2022-23 248,670               897,702           6.27%
2023-24 920,000               281,372           6.27%
2024-25 1,025,000            229,756           5.68%
2025-26 1,145,000            171,536           5.68%
2026-27 1,270,000            106,500           5.68%
2027-28 605,000               34,365             5.68%

$ 6,214,366            $ 4,791,024        

YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST RATES

& 6/15
Due 12/15

Due 12/30
Due 6/30 & 6/30

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF FUTURE REQUIREMENTS FOR RETIREMENT OF LONG-TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Due 6/15

INTEREST

- 45 -
66



General Obligation Bond
July 19, 2016
Original issue: $14,200,000 2018-19 $ 330,000               $ 520,750           
Premium: $1,923,680 2019-20 370,000               513,550           

2020-21 405,000               507,450           
2021-22 450,000               491,250           
2023-27 2,935,000            2,163,950        
2028-32 4,340,000            1,499,125        
2033-37 4,770,000            505,625           

$ 13,600,000          $ 6,201,700        

Qualified Zone Academy Bond (QZAB)
held by LaSalle Bank N.A.
 - Original Balance $1,000,000

2018-19 $ 65,000                 $ 6,034               1.49%
2019-20 65,000                 5,066               1.49%
2020-21 65,000                 4,098               1.49%
2021-22 70,000                 3,129               1.49%
2022-23 70,000                 2,088               1.49%
2023-24 70,000                 1,043               1.49%

$ 405,000               $ 21,458             

Qualified Zone Academy Bond (QZAB)
held by All Points Capital Corporation
- Original Balance $1,000,000

2018-19 $ 71,429                 $ -                   0.00%
2019-20 71,429                 -                   0.00%
2020-21 71,429                 -                   0.00%
2021-22 71,429                 -                   0.00%
2022-23 71,429                 -                   0.00%
2023-24 71,429                 -                   0.00%

$ 428,569               $ -                   

YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST RATES

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF FUTURE REQUIREMENTS FOR RETIREMENT OF LONG-TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

INTEREST

Due 7/10Due 7/10

Due 7/1 Due 7/1

- 46 -
67



Fund 100 Fund 200 Fund 300 Fund 400 Fund 700 TOTAL 
1110 Ad Valorem Taxes Levied by District 3,050,678$     -$ 1,470,722$     -$ -$ 4,521,400$           
1120 Local Option Ad Valorem Taxes Levied by District - - - - - - 
1130 Construction Excise Tax - - - 180,128          - 180,128 
1190 Penalties and interest on taxes 17,396            - 3,623 - - 21,019 
1311 Tuition from other districts within the state - - - - - - 
1312 Tuition from regional districts 24,070            - - - - 24,070 
1313 Tuition from districts out of state - - - - - - 
1314 Tuition from IN/ST Out/Regional - - - - - - 
1330 Summer school tuition 2,120 - - - - 2,120 
1411 Transportation fees 1,090 - - - - 1,090 
1500 Earnings on investments 52,187            101 6,337 196,772          - 255,397 
1600 Food Service - 90,858 - - - 90,858 
1700 Extracurricular Activities 43,963            262,050 - - - 306,013 
1800 Community Services Activities - - - - - - 
1910 Rentals 7,573 - - 7,168 - 14,741 
1920 Contributions and donations from private sources 866 27,121            - - 1,320 29,307 
1940 Services provided other district within the state - - - - - - 
1950 Textbook sales and rentals - - - - - - 
1960 Recovery of prior year expenditures 6,228 198 - - - 6,426 
1970 Services provided other funds - - 876,270          - - 876,270 
1990 Miscellaneous 45,951            1,506 - 5,928 - 53,385

3,252,122       381,834          2,356,952       389,996 1,320              6,382,224 

2101 County school funds 3,667 - - - - 3,667 
2102 General ESD Funds 200,067          - - - - 200,067 
2200 Restricted Revenue - 2,714 - - - 2,714 
2800 Revenue in lieu of taxes - - - - - - 

203,734          2,714              - - - 206,448

3101 State School Support 6,486,466       - - - - 6,486,466             
3102 SSF - School Lunch Match - 3,717 - - - 3,717 
3103 Common school fund 108,553          - - - - 108,553
3199 Other unrestricted sources - - - - - - 
3200 Restricted Grants-In-Aid - 40,618 - - - 40,618 
3299 Other restricted grants-in-aid - 194,369 - 3,135,199 - 3,329,568
3900 Other state sources - - 17,956            - - 17,956 

6,595,019       238,704          17,956            3,135,199 - 9,986,878

4500 Restricted Rev Fed Gov through State - 469,761 - - - 469,761 
4700 Grants-in-aid from the federal government through 

other intermediate agencies
- 4,263 - - - 4,263 

4900 USDA Donated Commodities - 30,550 - - - 30,550 
- 504,574 - - - 504,574 

5100 Long Term Debt Financing Sources - - - - - - 
5200 Interfund Transfers - 101,559 331,432          - - 432,991 
5300 Sale/compensation fixed assets - - - 20,000            - 20,000
5400 Resources - Beginning Fund Balance 1,140,213       353,118          427,307          14,197,185     45,772            16,163,595 

1,140,213       454,677          758,739          14,217,185     45,772            16,616,586           

Total 11,191,088$   1,582,503$     3,133,647$     17,742,380$   47,092$          33,696,710$         

Total Revenue from Other Sources

Revenue from Other Sources

Revenue from State Sources

Revenue from Federal Sources

Total Revenue from State Sources

Total Revenue from Federal Sources

Yamhill-Carlton School District
Yamhill County, Oregon

REVENUE SUMMARY - ALL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenue from Intermediate Sources

Total Revenue from Intermediate Sources

Total Revenue from Local Sources

Revenue from Local Sources

-47-68



Fund: 100 General Funds
Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 

1111 Primary, K-3 828,018$      338,135$      50,442$        32,849$      -$             -$  -$ 1,249,444$     
1121 Middle/Junior high school programs 764,367        409,106        62,246          34,754        - - - 1,270,473       
1122 Middle/Junior high school extracurricular 1,982            521 - - - - - 2,503 
1131 High school programs 780,356        412,504        58,876          48,646        - - - 1,300,382       
1132 High school extracurricular 174,246        42,931          32,354          14,329        - 6,482 - 270,342 
1140 Pre-Kindergarten Programs - - - - - - - -
1220 Restrictive programs for student with disabilities 366,078        287,547        136,074        259 - - - 789,958          
1250 Less restrictive programs for student with 

disabilities
250,977        168,681        35,500          4,344          - - -

459,502          
1280 Alternative education 234,527        78,128          65,069          37,229        - - - 414,953          
1291 English second language programs 37,754          3,046            1,772            - - - - 42,572            
1400 Summer school programs 3,000            810 - - - - - 3,810 

Total Instruction Expenditures 3,441,305     1,741,409     442,333        172,410      - 6,482 - 5,803,939 

2110 Attendance and social work 19,553          16,809          - - - 595             - 36,957 
2120 Guidance services 68,102          30,197          88,158          1,310          - - - 187,767          
2130 Health services - - - 717 - - - 717
2140 Psychological services - - 5,000            - - - - 5,000 
2190 Service direction, student support services 45,781          18,503          96 - - - - 64,380            
2210 Improvement of instruction services - - 3,263            251 - - - 3,514 
2220 Educational media services 50,163          44,608          - 5,042 - - - 99,813            
2240 Instructional Staff Development - - - - - - - - 
2310 Board of education services - - 48,360          1,667          - 28,680 - 78,707 
2320 Executive administration services 152,045        69,776          4,077            537 - 595 - 227,030 
2410 Office of the principal services 595,996        293,283        8,512            13,458        119          2,480 - 913,848 
2520 Fiscal services 122,739        30,359          17,586          33,693        - 4,085 - 208,462 
2540 Operation and maintenance of plant services 303,400        164,908        392,194        49,833        - 101,695 - 1,012,030 
2550 Student transportation services - - 735,823        - - - - 735,823          
2640 Staff services 31,207          18,962          8,254            345 - 1,678 - 60,446 
2660 Technology services 29,280          10,148          144,979        34,410        - 10,714 - 229,531 

Total Support Services Expenditures 1,418,266     697,553        1,456,302     141,263      119          150,522       - 3,864,025 

5100 Debt service - - - - - 95,409 - 95,409 
5200 Transfers of Funds - - - - - - 432,991        432,991 

Total Other Uses Expenditures - - - - - 95,409 432,991        528,400          

Total 100 General Funds 4,859,571$   2,438,962$    1,898,635$   313,673$    119$        252,413$     432,991$      10,196,364$   

Yamhill-Carlton School District
Yamhill County, Oregon

GENERAL FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Support Services Expenditures

Other Uses Expenditures

Instruction Expenditures

-48-69



Fund: 200 Special Revenue Funds

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 
1111 Primary, K-3 14$  4$  533$            14,070$    -$ -$  -$  14,621$           
1113 Elementary extracurricular - - - 29,602      - - - 29,602             
1121 Middle/Junior High Programs 490 130 19,730         12,620      - - - 32,970             
1122 Middle/Junior high school extracurricular 3,223 866 - 56,878 - - - 60,967             
1131 High school programs 67,277             46,444           2,608           17,593 15,174        - - 149,096           
1132 High school extracurricular - - - 169,527 - - - 169,527           
1220

Restrictive programs for student with disabilities
2,869 790 - - - - - 

3,659 
1250 Less restrictive programs for student with 

disabilities
95,130             42,476           3,045           248           - - - 

140,899           
1272 Title I 42,526             25,951           4,557           - - - - 73,034             
1291 English Language Learner 10,323             4,171             1,835           17,565      - - - 33,894             

Total Instruction Expenditures 221,852           120,832         32,308         318,103    15,174        - - 708,269           

2120 Guidance Services 1,667 133 - - - - - 1,800 
2210 Improve instruction services 21,125             7,573             13,973         - - - - 42,671 
2212 Other improvement of instruction services - - - - - - - - 
2230 Assessment and testing 3,942 1,039             - 85 - - - 5,066 
2240 Instructional staff development - - 11,890         - - - - 11,890 
2410 Office of principal services - - - - - - - - 
2490 Other support services - school administration - - - - - - - - 
2520 Fiscal services - 4,417 - - - - - 4,417 
2529 Other fiscal services - - - - - - - -
2540 Operation and maintenance of plant services - - - - - - - -
2558 Special education transportation services - - - - - - - -
2579 Other internal services - - - - - - - -
2620 Plan, research and development - - - - - - - -
2640 Staff services - 25,328 - - - - - 25,328 
2660 Technology services - - - - - - - -
2700 Supplemental retirement program 13,500             49,242           - - - - - 62,742 

Total Support Services Expenditures 40,234             87,732           25,863         85             - - - 153,914           

3100 Food services 125,029           67,907           2,527           157,713    5,723          6,640           - 365,539 
Total Enterprise and Community Services 125,029           67,907           2,527           157,713    5,723          6,640           - 365,539 

Total 200 Special Revenue Funds 387,115$         276,471$       60,698$       475,901$  20,897$      6,640$         -$             1,227,722$      

Yamhill County, Oregon
Yamhill County, Oregon

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Instruction Expenditures

Support Services Expenditures

Enterprise and Community Services 

-49-70



Fund: 300 Debt Service

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 

2520 Fiscal services -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Total Support Services Expenditures - - - - - - - - 

5100 Debt Service - - - - - 2,502,835 - 2,502,835
Total Other Uses Expenditures - - - - - 2,502,835 - 2,502,835

Total 500 Enterprise Funds -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  2,502,835$     -$  2,502,835$     

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Yamhill-Carlton School District
Yamhill County, Oregon

DEBT SERVICE FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 

Other Uses Expenditures

Support Services Expenditures

-50-71



Fund: 400 Capital Projects Funds

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 

2310 Board of Education Services -$  -$  1,723$         -$  -$ -$  -$  1,723$            
2520 Fiscal Services - - - - - 6,505 - 6,505 
2540 Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services - - 6,709           18,397         61,754          - - 86,860            

Total Support Services Expenditures - - 8,432           18,397         61,754          6,505           - 95,088 

4150 Building Acquisition, Construction, and Impr - - 188,709        - 12,422,744 - - 12,611,453     
Total Other Uses Expenditures - - 188,709        - 12,422,744 - - 12,611,453     

Total 400 Capital Projects Funds 
-$  -$  197,141$      18,397$        12,484,498$  6,505$         -$  12,706,541$   

Support Services Expenditures

Facilities Acquisition and Construction

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Yamhill-Carlton School District
Yamhill County, Oregon

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 

-51-72



Fund: 700 Fiduciary Fund

Object 100 Object 200 Object 300 Object 400 Object 500 Object 600 Object 700 TOTAL 

1300 Adult/Continuing Education Programs -$  -$  2,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  2,000$            
Total Instruction Expenditures - - 2,000              - - - - 2,000              

Total 700 Agency Funds -$  -$  2,000$            -$  -$  -$  -$  2,000$            

Yamhill-Carlton School District
Yamhill County, Oregon

FIDUCIARY FUND
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Instruction

-52-73



A. Energy Bill for Heating - All Funds: Objects 325 & 326
Please enter your expenditures for electricity Function 2540  $ 203,870 
& heating fuel for these Functions & Objects. Function 2550 -   

Amount
B. Replacement of Equipment – General Fund:

 $ -   

1113, 1122 & 1132 4150 Construction
1140 2550 Pupil Transportation
1300 3100 Food Service
1400 3300 Community Services

Pre-Kindergarten
Continuing Education
Summer School

Include all General Fund expenditures in object 542, except for the following exclusions:
Exclude these functions:

Co-curricular Activities

Yamhill-Carlton School District
Yamhill County, Oregon

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
As Required by The Department of Education

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

-53-74



Federal Pass
CFDA Through Grant

Program Title Number Number Period
U.S. Department of Education

Passed through Oregon Department of Education:
Title I, Part A Cluster:

Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 45726 7/1/2017 - 9/30/2018 $ 82,872         $ 73,033        

     Total, Title I, Part A Cluster 82,872         73,033        

Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
Special Education Grants to States 16-17 84.027 41646 7/1/2016 - 12/31/2017 58,047         58,047        
Special Education Grants to States 17-18 84.027 45282 7/1/2017 - 12/31/2018 106,953       79,559        
SPR&I 2017-18 84.027 44531 7/1/2017 - 9/30/2018 2,000           568             
IDEA Enhancement 17-18 84.027 46574 7/1/2016 - 9/30/2018 2,122           2,122          

     Total, Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 169,122       140,297      

Student Support and Academic Enrichment 17-19 84.424 47855 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 10,000         10,000        
10,000         10,000        

Title IIA - Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 41445 7/1/2016 - 9/30/2017 9,410           9,410          
Title IIA - Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 45941 7/1/2017 - 9/30/2018 19,125         19,125        

28,535         28,535        
          Total, Passed through Oregon Department of Education 290,529       251,865      

          Total, U.S. Department of Education 290,529       251,865      

IDEA Extended Assessment 84.027 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 603              603             
IDEA Regional Services 84.027 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 3,660           3,660          
          Total, Passed through Willamette ESD 4,263           4,263          

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through Oregon Department of Education:

Child Nutrition Cluster:
Commodities 10.555 N/A 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 30,550         30,550        
School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 50,526         50,526        
State Administrative Expenses for Child Nutrition 10.560 N/A 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 901              901             
Summer Food Service Program 10.559 N/A 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 8,156           8,156          
National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 158,319       158,319      

     Total, Child Nutrition Cluster 248,451       248,451      

          Total, U.S. Department of Agriculture 248,451       248,451      

$ 543,243       $ 504,579      

Grant

Total, Federal Awards

Amount

2017/18
Revenue and
Expenditures

YAMHILL-CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

-54-75



General Government

Operating 

Rate

Bond Levy 

Rate

Consolidated 

Rate

Yamhill County 2.5775$     ‐  2.5775$            

Yamhill County Extension Service 0.0449        ‐  0.0449              

Yamhill County Soil & Water 0.0354        ‐  0.0354              

Chemekata Library 0.0818        ‐  0.0818              

City of Carlton 4.9602        0.3677         5.3279              

Carlton Fire 1.0500        0.3865         1.4365              

Total General Government 8.7498        0.7542         9.5040              

Education

Yamhill‐Carlton SD 4.7818        2.3550         7.1368              

Willamette Regional ESD 0.2967        ‐  0.2967              

Chemekata Community College 0.6259        0.2759         0.9018              

Total Education 5.7044        2.6309         8.3353              

Total Tax Rate 14.4542$   3.3851$       17.8393$          

Source:  Yamhill County Assessor's Office, Tax Code 11

Representative Levy Rate

(Rates per $1,000 of Assessed Value)

2018

-55a-76



Fiscal 

Year

M5 Real Market

Value

Total Assessed 

Value

Urban Renewal

Excess

Net Assessed

Value

2018 1,437,878,982$     667,298,085$            8,039,947$     675,338,032$     

2017 923,637,986           643,686,198              6,961,018        650,647,216        

2016 815,265,599           612,467,346              6,431,725        618,899,071        

2015 784,024,262           585,124,515              4,446,352        589,570,867        

2014 801,527,897           565,421,402              3,610,473        569,031,875        

2013 740,047,841           543,068,722              3,075,193        546,143,915        

2012 770,715,619           522,553,070              2,583,923        525,136,993        

Taxable Property Values

-55b-77



Taxpayer Business/Service

Percent of 

Value

Portland General Electric Co Electrical/Utility $ 61,760       $ 14,735,000        2.21%

Weyerhaeuser Company by Merger to Wood Products 44,669       9,341,410           1.40%

Jackson Family Investments Investment 20,772       4,955,880           0.74%

Jackson Family Investments III LLC Investment 17,125       3,864,808           0.58%

Bailey Nurseries Inc Agriculture 17,059       3,604,728           0.54%

Doran Living Trust Trust 15,104       3,158,649           0.47%

Comcast Corporation Utility 14,542       3,195,300           0.48%

Trappist Abby of Our Lady of Guadalupe Monastery 13,654       3,099,793           0.46%

Carlton Packing Co Inc Farm 13,551       3,220,355           0.48%

Campbell Vineyard Properties LLC Winery 13,358       3,135,336           0.47%

Subtotal ‐ ten of District'slargest taxpayers 52,311,259        7.84%

All other District's taxpayers 614,986,826      92.16%

Total District $ 667,298,085      100.00%

Tax Assessed Value

Major Taxpayers ‐ Fiscal Year 2018

Yamhill‐Carlton School District

-55c-78



Fiscal 

Year

Permanent

Rate Total

2018 4.7818$              2.3550$   7.1368$  

2017 4.7818                 2.3550     7.1368    

2016 4.7818                 0.9371     5.7189    

2015 4.7818                 1.2178     5.9996    

2014 4.7818                 1.0985     5.8803    

2013 4.7818                 1.1171     5.8989    

2012 4.7818                 1.2178     5.9996    

2011 4.7818                 1.2149     5.9967    

Bond

Levy

Representative Levy Rate

-55d-79



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OREGON 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 

 
 

80



 

- 56 - 
 

 
 

 December 20, 2018 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report Required by Oregon State Regulations 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the Yamhill Carlton School District as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2018.  We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-
10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statements amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and 
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following: 
 
 Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295) 
 Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment. 
 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 
 Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
 State school fund factors and calculation. 
 
In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Yamhill Carlton 
School District was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-
10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations. 
 
 
OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the internal controls over financial reporting as a basis 
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control over financial 
reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls over 
financial reporting. 
 
 

PAULY, ROGERS, AND CO., P.C. 
12700 SW 72nd Ave. Tigard, OR 97223 
(503) 620-2632  (503) 684-7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com   

81



 

- 57 - 
 

 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and the 
Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
TARA M KAMP, CPA  
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

82

TaraK
Stamp



 

Yamhill Carlton School Board OSBA Scholarship 
Academic Scholarship Application 

 
The Academic scholarships are awarded to qualifying seniors who are students in the 
Yamhill Carlton School District. The deadline for applications is May 1st, 2019. Scholarship 
Award(s) will be announced at the end of the year senior awards banquet.  
 
Purpose: To provide up to two scholarships to graduating seniors pursuing a post-high 
school course of study at either a college/university, other post-secondary educational 
institution, or a trade school and graduated high school in 2019 and payable in the 2019-20 
school year.  
 
Award Components: Two $2500 scholarship(s) awarded to student(s) selected by the 
Yamhill Carlton School District School Board.  
 
Criteria:  
1. Applicants must be a graduating senior in the year of the award. 
 
Accessing Funds: Scholarship funds will be awarded to the student upon evidence of 
registration (letter of matriculation) in college/university or other post-secondary educational 
institution or trade school.  A check will be sent to the school in your name.  
 
Application Process:  
1. Completed application form.  
2. Letter of application addressed to the School Board. Letter should contain a brief 
explanation of career goals and biographical (background) information.  
3. An official high school transcript with cumulative grade point average and class 
rank/standing. 
4. Two (2) letters of recommendation from high school teachers, administrators, counselors, 
employers, or individual with significant knowledge of applicant’s experience and 
involvement, NOT your parent.  
 
5. Personal essay. In your essay please answer the question (typed, double spaced 
minimum of 250 words, with word count noted):  
 

Describe and explain how you have worked in your life to make a positive difference. 
 
Deadline: Application deadline is May 1st, 2019 by 4 PM. Applications not received by 
this date and time will NOT be considered.  
 

Send applications to: 
Yamhill Carlton School District – District Office 

120 N Larch Place - Yamhill, OR 97148 

83



Yamhill Carlton School Board OSBA Scholarship 
Academic Scholarship Application Form 

 
Student Name: ________________________________________________________  
 
Parents Name: _________________________________________________________ 
  
Address: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
City/State/Zip __________________________________________________________  
 
Telephone (Home) _________________________(Cell)_________________________ 
  
Email Address __________________________________________________________ 
 
High School:  ___________________________________________________________ 
 
*I am/will be attending the following school in the Fall 2019:__________________________  
 

*Proof of acceptance from the above school is required prior to receipt of funds. 
 

1. List your academic honors, awards, sports activities, and membership activities 
during high school (grades 9-12).  (Use a separate sheet if needed). 

 
 
 

2. List your volunteer community service activities, hobbies, outside interests, and 
extracurricular activities (grades 9-12). (Use a separate sheet if needed). 

 
 
 

3. Personal essay written separately and included in the application packet (typed, 
double spaced minimum of 250 words, with word count noted):  

 
Describe and explain how you have worked in your life to make a positive 

difference. 
 

STATEMENT OF ACCURACY 
I hereby affirm that all the above stated information provided by me is true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge. I also consent that my picture may be taken and used for promotion and announcements.  
I hereby understand that if chosen as a scholarship winner, I must provide evidence of enrollment / 
registration at the post-secondary institution of my choice before scholarship funds can be awarded.  
 
Signature of scholarship applicant: __________________________________________Date________  
 
Signature of parent (if under 18): ____________________________________________Date________  

 
The deadline for this application to be received is: May 1, 2019, by 4 PM. 

84



Yamhill Carlton School Board OSBA Scholarship 
 

CRITERIA  3  2  1 

Completion of 
Application 

All sections complete; 
neat presentation; 
statement of accuracy 
signed / dated 

One section 
missing and neat; 
or all sections 
complete and 
messy 

Two missing 
sections either neat 
or messy 

Academic honors, 
awards, sports activities, 
and membership activities 

Numerous (15 or more 
noted) 

Some (9‐14)   Few (3‐8) 

Volunteer community 
service, hobbies, outside 
interests, extracurricular 
activities 

Numerous (6 or more 
noted) 

Some (3‐5 noted)  Few (1‐2) 

Required elements 
1. HS transcript 
2.  Two letters of 
recommendation 

All evident; 
recommendations 
completely align with 
application 

N/A  One item missing; 
recommendations not 
completely aligned  
 

Letter of Application  Includes career goals and 
biographical background; 
information well‐
articulated; neat and 
professional 

Contains career goals and 
bio information; content 
written with minimal 
information; neat 

Incomplete career goals 
and/or bio information; 
content weak or sparse; 
hand written / messy  
 

Personal Essay Format  Minimum of 250 words, 
typed, double spaced, 
neat and professional 
(spelling, punctuation, 
format readable); well 
articulated 

N/A  Incomplete for 
minimum words, 
formatting messy, 
spelling and / or 
punctuation errors 

Personal Essay Content  Convinced Board member 
that they have made a 
positive difference 

Somewhat Convinced  Did not Convince 

Attendance  95% and Greater  90% ‐ 94.99%  <90% 

Grade Point Average 
 
 

 
4.00+ ‐ 3.9 

 
3.89 – 3.70 

 
3.69 – 3.0 

     
TOTAL POINTS 
 
(POSSIBLE:  27) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

85



 

86



 

R9/28/176/21/18│PH Criminal Records Checks and Fingerprinting * – GCDA/GDDA
1-3

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: GCDA/GDDA 
Adopted: 10/9/2006 
Revised/Readopted 2/13/12, 8/8/2016, 12/14/2017 
 

Criminal Records Checks and Fingerprinting * 
 
In a continuing effort to further ensure the safety and welfare of students and staff, the district shall require 
all newly hired full-time and part-time employees not requiring licensure to undergo a criminal records 
check and/or fingerprinting. Other individuals, as determined by the district, that will have direct, 
unsupervised contact with students shall have submit to criminal records checks and/or fingerprinting as 
required by law. 
 
“Direct, unsupervised contact with students” means contact with students that provides the person 
opportunity and probability for personal communication or touch when not under direct supervision. 
 
As required by state law, a criminal records check and/or fingerprinting shall be required of the following 
individual or individuals1 (subject individuals and requirements are further outlined in GCDA/GDDA-AR 
- Criminal Records Checks and Fingerprinting): 
 
1. All district contractors and/or their employees, whether employed part-time or full-time, considered 

by the district to have direct, unsupervised access tocontact with students; 

2. All district contractors and/or their employees who provide early childhood special education or 
early intervention services in accordance with rules established by the Oregon Department of 
Education, Child Care Division; 

3. Any community college faculty member providing instruction at the site of an early childhood 
education program, or at a school site as part of an early childhood program, or at a grade K through 
12 school site during the regular school day; 

4. Any individual who is an employee of a public charter school and not requiring licensure[; and] [.] 

5. [2]Any individual considered for volunteer service with the district who is allowed to have direct, 
unsupervised contact with students]. 

[The district shall require a nationwide criminal records check based on fingerprinting for a volunteer with 
direct, unsupervised contact with students in the following positions3: 
 

                                                 
1 Subject individuals and requirements are further outlined in GCDA/GDDA-AR – Criminal Records Checks and 
Fingerprinting. 

2 [If the district allows volunteer service and the volunteers have direct, unsupervised contact with students, this policy language 
is required, and districts are required to conduct background checks on these volunteers.] 

3 [If the district requires fingerprinting for certain volunteer positions, the district is required to list those volunteer positions in 
board policy. The bracketed language is only possible examples; modify to identify the needs of the district.] 

87



 

R9/28/176/21/18│PH Criminal Records Checks and Fingerprinting * – GCDA/GDDA
2-3

 

1. [Head coach;] 

2. [Assistant coach;] 

3. [Overnight chaperone;] 

4. [Volunteers transporting students, other than their own, in a private vehicle off district property for a 
district-sponsored activity] [;] [.] 

5. [List of other positions subject to this fingerprinting, if any.] 

The identity of an subject individual requiring fingerprinting will be provided by the district to the 
authorized fingerprinter for verification. 

An subject individual shall be subject to fingerprinting only after acceptance of an offer of employment or 
contract. 
 
The district [shall] [shall not] begin the employment of a subject individual or terms of a district contractor 
[on a probationary basis pending] [before] the return and disposition of the required criminal records 
checks and/or fingerprinting. 
 
A subject individual who has been convicted of any crimes prohibiting employment or contract will be 
terminated and/or will not be employed or contracted. A subject individual who has failed fails to disclose 
the presence of convictions that would not otherwise prohibit his/her employment or contract with the 
district as provided by law, [may] [will not] be employed or contracted with by the district. A subject 
individual who knowingly made a false statement as to the conviction of any crime [may] [will not] be 
employed or contracted with by the district. 
 
The district’s use of criminal history must be relevant to the specific requirements of the position, services 
or employment. 
 
[The service of a volunteer with allowed to have direct, unsupervised access tocontact with students [may] 
[will not] begin [on a probationary basis pending] [before] the return and disposition of a criminal records 
check.] 
 
[The service of a volunteer in a position identified by the district as requiring a nationwide criminal 
records check including fingerprinting [may] [will not] begin [on a probationary basis pending] [before] 
the return and disposition of the nationwide criminal records check including fingerprinting.]  
 
[An subject individual who knowingly made a false statement as to the conviction of any crime on district 
volunteer forms, as determined by the district, or has been convicted of a crime listed in ORS 342.143 
[may] [will] result in immediate termination from the ability to volunteer in the district.] 
 
Fees associated with a criminal records check and/or fingerprinting may be charged. 
 
The superintendent shall develop administrative regulations as necessary to meet the requirements of law. 
 
  

88



 

R9/28/176/21/18│PH Criminal Records Checks and Fingerprinting * – GCDA/GDDA
3-3

 

Appeals 
 
An subject individual eligible may appeal a determination that prevents his/her employment or eligibility 
to contract with the district to the Superintendent of Public Instruction as a contested case and will be so 
notified of such in writing by the ODE. 
 
A volunteer required to submit to a fingerprint-based criminal records check may appeal a determination 
that prevents the ability to volunteer with the district to the Superintendent of Public Instruction as a 
contested case, if the results of the background check were provided by ODE or ODE’s vendor and will be 
notified of such in writing by ODE. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 181A.180 
ORS 181A.230 
ORS 326.603 
ORS 326.607 
ORS 332.107 

ORS 336.631 
ORS 342.143 
ORS 342.223 
OAR 414-061-0010 - 0030 
OAR 581-021-0500 

OAR 581-021-0502 
OAR 581-022-2430 
OAR 584-050-0012

 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et. seq. (2012). 

89



 

CR6/30/166/21/18 | PH Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) a.k.a. Drone – ECACB
1-2

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: ECACB 
Adopted: 3/8/2018 
Revised:  
 

Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) a.k.a. Drone 
 
Any employee or representative of the district operating a district unmanned aircraft system shall do so in 
accordance with this policy and all applicable Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) regulations. 
 
An “unmanned aircraft system” (UAS) means an unmanned flying machine, commonly known as a drone, 
and its associated elements, including communication links and the components that control the machine. 
 
The district recognizes the academic value of student operation of a UAS as one component of curricula 
pertaining to principles of flight, aerodynamics and airplane design and construction, which can also serve 
as an academic tool in other areas such as television, film production or the arts in general. Therefore, in 
compliance with the Federal Aviation Administration Modernization and Reform Act of 2012, Section 
336, students may operate a UAS as part of a course requirement, as long as that student does not receive 
compensation directly or incidentally from such operation. District staff and authorized volunteers 
teaching a class that allows use of a UAS may assist a student in their operation of the UAS, provided the 
assistance is needed as part of the curriculum and assistance is to a student enrolled in the course. The staff 
member’s participation must be limited to the student’s operation of the UAS. 
 
District employees shall work with administrators to ensure that proper insurance, registration and 
authorization are in place prior to adoption of curriculum that allows operation of a UAS as part of the 
curriculum. 
 
A UAS shall be operated in accordance with the policies of the Oregon School Activities Association 
(OSAA)1 at OSAA sanctioned events. Use of a UAS at other district-sponsored athletics or activities is 
prohibited. 
 
A student in violation of this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including suspension 
and/or expulsion. 
 
A staff member in violation of this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
dismissal. 
 
All data gathered by the district as part of a UAS operation will belong to the district. The data gathering 
by the district will follow appropriate state and federal laws. Retention of such data will follow state and 
federal laws. 
 
The superintendent shall develop procedures for the implementation of this policy. 
 
The district shall post a copy of this policy, associated procedures and a copy of Oregon Revised Statute 
(ORS) 192.501345 on the district’s website. 

                                                 
1 http://www.osaa.org/governance/handbooks/osaa #85 

90



 

CR6/30/166/21/18 | PH Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) a.k.a. Drone – ECACB
2-2

 

 
[Third Party Use 
 
Third party use of a UAS on district property or at district-sponsored events for any purpose is prohibited, 
unless granted permission from the [superintendent or designee]. 
 
If permission is granted by the [superintendent or designee], the third party operating a UAS will comply 
with all FAA regulations and shall provide the following to the district: 
 
1.  Proof of insurance that meets the liability limits established by the district; 

2. Appropriate registration and authorization issued by the FAA and the Oregon Department of 
Aviation when required; and 

3. A signed agreement holding the district harmless from any claims of harm to individuals or damage 
to property.] 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 164.885 
ORS 174.109 
ORS 192.501345 

ORS 837.300 - 837.390 
ORS 837.995 
 

OAR 738-080-0015 - 0045

 
Federal Aviation Administration Modernization and Reform Act of 2012, P.L. 112-95 § 336 (2012). 
Federal Aviation Administration, Educational Use of Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) Memorandum, May 4, 2016. 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2012). 
OREGON SCHOOL ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATION HANDBOOK #85 (2015-2016). 

91



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Staff Ethics – GBC
1-7

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: GBC 
Adopted: 2/27/2012 
Revised: 12/9/2014, 4/11/2016 
 

Staff Ethics 
 
I. Conflict of Interest Prohibited Use of Official Position or Financial Gain 
 
No district employee will attempt to use his/her their district position to obtain personal financial benefit 
gain or avoidance of financial detriment or financial gain or avoidance of financial detriment for 
themselves, relatives, household members of household or for any business with which the employee, a 
household member or relative is associated, if the financial gain or avoidance of financial detriment would 
not otherwise be available but for the district employee’s employment with the district. 
 
This prohibition does not apply to any part of an official compensation package as approved by the Board, 
honorarium allowed by Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 244.042, reimbursement of expenses, or unsolicited 
awards of professional achievement. Further, this prohibition does not apply to gifts from one without a 
legislative or administrative interest. Nor does it apply if the gift is under the $50 gift limit for one who has 
a legislative or administrative interest in any matter subject to the decision or vote of the district employee. 
 
The employee may receive district or school logo apparel as part of the employee’s official compensation 
package. 
 
District employees will not engage in, or have a personal financial interest in, any activity that raises a 
reasonable question of conflict of interest with regarding the use of their official position in regards to their 
duties and responsibilities as staff membersdistrict employees. This would also apply to any personal 
financial benefit for the district employee’s relative or member of household of the employee, or any 
business with which the district employee or a relative or member of the household of the district 
employee is associated. 
 
This means that: 
 
1. Employees, relatives or members of the district employee’s household will not use their the 

employee’s position to obtain financial gain or avoidance of financial detriment from students, 
parents or staff; 

2. Any device, publication or any other item developed during the employee’s paid time shall be 
district property; 

3. Employees will not further personal gain through the use of confidential information gained in the 
course of or by reason of position or activities in any way; 

4. No district employee may serve as a Board or budget committee member in the district[.][;]  [A 
district or charter school substitute bus driver in a district with an average daily membership of 50 or 
less may serve as a Board member;] 

92



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Staff Ethics – GBC
2-7

 

5. An employee will not perform any duties related to an outside job during his/her regular working 
hours or during the additional time that he/she needs to fulfill the position’s responsibilities; nor will 
an employee use any district facilities, equipment or materials in performing outside work; 

6. If an employee authorizes a public contract, the employee may not have a direct beneficial financial 
interest in that public contract for two years after the date the contract was authorized. 

If an district employee has a potential or actual conflict of interest, the district employee must notify 
his/her supervisor in writing of the nature of the conflict and request that the supervisor dispose of the 
matter giving rise to the conflict. This must be done on each occasion the district employee is met with a 
conflict of interest. 
 
“Potential conflict of interest” means any action or any decision or recommendation by a district employee 
that could result in a financial benefit or detriment for self or relatives or for any business with which the 
district employee or relatives are associated, unless otherwise provided by law. 
 
“Actual conflict of interest” means any action or any decision or recommendation by a district employee 
that would result in a financial benefit or detriment for self or relatives or for any business with which the 
district employee or relatives are associated, unless otherwise provided by law. 
 
In order to avoid both potential and actual conflicts of interestsviolation of nepotism provisions and district 
policy, district employees must abide by the following rules when an employee’s relative or member of the 
household of the district employee, is seeking and/or holds a position with the district: 
 
1. A district employee may not appoint, employ, promote, discharge, fire, or demote or advocate for 

such an employment decision for a relative or a member of the household, unless he/she complies 
with the conflict of interest requirements of Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapter 244. This rule 
does not apply to employment decisions regarding unpaid volunteer position, unless it is a Board-
related position; 

2. A district employee may not participate as a public official in any interview, discussion, or debate 
regarding the appointment, employment, promotion, discharge, firing, or demotion of a relative or a 
member of the household. An employee may still serve as a reference, provide a recommendation, or 
perform other acts that are part of the normal job functions of the employee; 

3. More than one member of an employee’s family may be hired as a regular district employee. In 
accordance with Oregon law, however, the district may refuse to hire individuals, or may transfer 
current employees, in situations where an appointment would place one family member in a position 
of exercising supervisory, appointment or grievance adjustment authority over another member of 
the same family. [Employees who are members of the same family may not be assigned to work in 
the same building except by the superintendent’s approval.] 

In the conflict of interest context: 
 
“Member of household” means any person who resides with the employee. 
 

93



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Staff Ethics – GBC
3-7

 

“Relative” means: the spouse1, parent, step-parent, child, sibling, step-sibling, son-in-law or daughter-in-
law of the employee; or the parent, step-parent, child, sibling, step-sibling, son-in-law or daughter-in-law 
of the spouse of the employee. Relative also includes any individual for whom the employee has a legal 
support obligation, whose employment provides benefits2 to the employee, or who receives any benefit 
from the employee’s public employment. 
 
II. Gifts 
 
District employees must comply with the following rules involving gifts: 
 
Employees are public officials and therefore will not solicit or accept a gift or gifts with an aggregate value 
in excess of $50 from any single source in a calendar year that has a legislative or administrative interest in 
any matter subject to the decision or vote of the district employee. All gift-related provisions apply to the 
employee, their relatives, and members of their household. The $50 gift limit applies separately to the 
employee, and to the employee’s relatives or members of household, meaning that the employee and each 
member of their household and relative can accept up to $50 each from the same source/gift giver. A gift 
may be received by the district employee from, but not limited to, another district employee, a student or 
parent of a student or a vendor within the $50 gift limit. Except for exclusions in ORS 244.040(2), an item 
received by an employee from the district is prohibited. 
 
“Gift” means something of economic value given to an employee without valuable consideration of 
equivalent value, which is not extended to others who are not public officials on the same terms and 
conditions. 
  
“Relative” means: the spouse3, parent, step-parent, child, sibling, step-sibling, son-in-law or daughter-in-
law of the employee; or the parent, step-parent, child, sibling, step-sibling, son-in-law or daughter-in-law 
of the spouse of the employee. Relative also includes any individual for whom the employee has a legal 
support obligation, whose employment provides benefits4 to the employee, or who receives any benefit 
from the employee’s public employment. 
 
“Member of the household” means any person who resides with the employee. 
 
Determining the Source of Gifts 
 
Employees, the employee’s relatives or members of the employee’s household should not accept gifts in 
any amount without obtaining information from the gift giver as to who is the source of the gift. It is the 
employee’s personal responsibility to ensure that no single source provides gifts exceeding an aggregate 
value of $50 in a calendar year, if the source has a legislative or administrative interest in any matter 
subject to the decision or vote of the district employee. If the giver does not have a legislative or 
administrative interest, the ethics rules on gifts$50 limit does not apply and the employee need not keep 
track of it, although they are advised to do so anyway in case of a later dispute. 

                                                 
1 The term spouse includes domestic partner. 

2 Examples of benefits may include, but not be limited to, elements of an official compensation package including benefits such 
as insurance, tuition or retirement allotments. 

3 Ibid. p. 23 

4 Ibid. p. 23 

94



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Staff Ethics – GBC
4-7

 

Determining Legislative and Administrative Interest 
 
A “legislative or administrative interest” means an economic interest, distinct from that of the general 
public, in any action subject to the official decision of an employee. 
 
A “decision” means an act that commits the district to a particular course of action within the employee’s 
scope of authority and that is connected to the source of the gift’s economic interest. A decision is not a 
recommendation or work performed in an advisory capacity. If a supervisor delegates the decision to a 
subordinate but retains responsibility as the final decision maker, both the subordinate and supervisor’s 
actions would be considered a decision. 
 
Determining the Value of Gifts 
 
The fair market value of the merchandise, goods, or services received will be used to determine benefit or 
value. 
 
“Fair market value” is the dollar amount goods or services would bring if offered for sale by a person who 
desired, but was not obligated, to sell and purchased by one who is willing, but not obligated, to buy. Any 
portion of the price that was donated to charity, however, does not count toward the fair market value of 
the gift if the employee does not claim the charitable contribution on personal tax returns. Below are 
acceptable ways to calculate the fair market value of a gift: 
 
1. In calculating the per person cost at receptions or meals the payor of the employee’s admission or 

meal will include all costs other than any amount donated to a charity. 

For example, a person with a legislative or administrative interest buys a table for a charitable dinner 
at $100 per person. If the cost of the meal was $25 and the amount donated to charity was $75, the 
benefit conferred on the employee is $25. This example requires that the employee does not claim 
the charitable contribution on personal tax returns. 

2. For receptions and meals with multiple attendees, but with no price established to attend, the source 
of the employee’s meal or reception will use reasonable methods to determine the per person value 
or benefit conferred. The following examples are deemed reasonable methods of calculating value or 
benefit conferred: 

a. The source divides the amount spent on food, beverage and other costs (other than charitable 
contributions) by the number of persons whom the payor reasonably expects to attend the 
reception or dinner; 

b. The source divides the amount spent on food, beverage and other costs (other than charitable 
contributions) by the number of persons who actually attend the reception or dinner; or 

c. The source calculates the actual amount spent on the employee. 

3. Upon request by the employee, the source will give notice of the value of the merchandise, goods, 
or services received. 

4. Attendance at receptions where the food or beverage is provided as an incidental part of the 
reception is permitted without regard to the fair market value of the food and beverage provided. 

 
 

95



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Staff Ethics – GBC
5-7

 

Value of Unsolicited Tokens or Awards:  Resale Value 
 
Employees may accept unsolicited tokens or awards that are engraved or are otherwise personalized items. 
Such items are deemed to have a resale value under $25 (even if the personalized item cost the source 
more than $50), unless the personalized item is made from gold or some other valuable material that would 
have value over $25 as a raw material. 
 
Entertainment 
 
Employees may not solicit or accept any gifts of entertainment over $50 in value from any single source in 
a calendar year that has a legislative or administrative interest in any matter subject to the decision of the 
employee unless: 
 
1. The entertainment is incidental to the main purpose of another event (i.e., a band playing at a 

reception). Entertainment that involves personal participation is not incidental to another event (such 
as a golf tournament at a conference); or 

2. The employee is acting in their official capacity for a ceremonial purpose. 

Entertainment is ceremonial when an employee appears at an entertainment event for a “ceremonial 
purpose” at the invitation of the source of the entertainment who requests the presence of the 
employee at a special occasion associated with the entertainment. Examples of an appearance by an 
employee at an entertainment event for a ceremonial purpose include: throwing the first pitch at a 
baseball game, appearing in a parade and ribbon cutting for an opening ceremony. 

Exceptions 
 
The following are exceptions to the ethics rules on gifts that apply to employees: 
 
1. Gifts from “relatives” and “members of the household” to the employee are permitted in an 

unlimited amount; they are not considered gifts under the ethics rules; 

2. Informational or program material, publications, or subscriptions related to the recipient’s 
performance of official duties; 

3. Food, lodging, and travel generally count toward the $50 aggregate amount per year from a single 
source with a legislative or administrative interest, with the following exceptions:. 

a. Organized Planned Events. Employees are permitted to accept payment for travel conducted in the 
employee’s official capacity, for certain limited purposes: 

a. (1) Reasonable expenses (i.e., food, lodging, travel, fees) for attendance at a convention, fact-
finding mission or trip, or other meeting do not count toward the $50 aggregate amount IF: 

  

96



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Staff Ethics – GBC
6-7

 

(1) (a) The employee is scheduled to deliver a speech, make a presentation, participate on a 
panel, or represent the district; AND 

(a) (i) The giver is a unit of a: 

(i) 1) Federal, state, or local government; 
(ii) 2) An Oregon or federally recognized Native American Tribe; OR 
(iii) 3) Nonprofit corporation. 

(2) (b) The employee is representing the district: 

(a) (i) On an officially sanctioned trade-promotion or fact-finding mission; OR 
(b) (ii)Officially designated negotiations or economic development activities where 

receipt of the expenses is approved in advance by the superintendent. 

(2) The purpose of this the exception in a. above is to allow employees to attend organized, 
planned events and engage with the members of organizations by speaking or answering 
questions, participating in panel discussions or otherwise formally discussing matters in their 
official capacity. This exception to the gift definition does not authorize private meals where 
the participants engage in discussion. 

4. Food or beverage, consumed at a reception, meal, or meeting IF held by an organization and IF the 
employee is representing the district. 

“Reception” means a social gathering. Receptions are often held for the purpose of extending a 
ceremonial or formal welcome and may include private or public meetings during which guests are 
honored or welcomed. Food and beverages are often provided, but not as a plated, sit-down meal; 

5. Food or beverage consumed by employee acting in an official capacity in the course of financial 
transactions between the public body and another entity described in ORS 244.020(7)(b)(I)(i); 

6. Waiver or discount of registration expenses or materials provided to employee at a continuing 
education event that the employee may attend to satisfy a professional licensing requirement; 

7. An gift item received by the employee as part of the usual or customary practice of the employee’s 
private business, employment or position as a volunteer that bears no relationship to the employee’s 
district employment; 

8. Reasonable expenses paid to employee for accompanying students on an educational trip. 

Honoraria 
 
An employee may not solicit or receive, whether directly or indirectly, honoraria for the employee or any 
relative or member of the household of the employee if the honoraria are solicited or received in 
connection with the official duties of the employee. 
  

97



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Staff Ethics – GBC
7-7

 

The honoraria rules do not prohibit the solicitation or receipt of an honorarium or a certificate, plaque, 
commemorative token, or other item with a value of $50 or less; or the solicitation or receipt of an 
honorarium for services performed in relation to the private profession, occupation, avocation, or expertise 
of the employee. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

 
Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 244.010 - 244.400 
ORS 332.016 

ORS 659A.309 
 

OAR 199-005-0001 - 199-020-0020 
OAR 584-020-0040

 
OR. ETHICS COMM’N, OR. GOV’T ETHICS LAW, A GUIDE FOR PUBLIC OFFICIALS. 

98



 

R6/12/146/21/18│PH Sexual Harassment – GBN/JBA
1-3

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: GBN/JBA 
Adopted: 10/9/2006 
Revised: 12/14/2014 
 

Sexual Harassment 
 
The Board is committed to the elimination of sexual harassment in district schools and activities. Sexual 
harassment is strictly prohibited and shall not be tolerated. This includes sexual harassment of students, 
staff members, or third parties who are on or immediately adjacent to school grounds, at any district-
sponsored activity, on any district-provided transportation or at any official district bus stop, by other 
students, staff members, Board members or third parties. “Third parties” include, but are not limited to, 
school volunteers, parents, school visitors, service contractors or others engaged in district business, such 
as employees of businesses or organizations participating in cooperative work programs with the district 
and others not directly subject to district control at interdistrict and intradistrict athletic competitions or 
other school events. “District” includes: district facilities; district premises and nondistrict property if the 
student or employee staff member is at any district-sponsored, district-approved or district-related activity 
or function, such as field trips or athletic events, where students are under the control jurisdiction of the 
district; or where the employee staff member is engaged in district business. The prohibition also includes 
off duty conduct which is incompatible with district job responsibilities. 
 
Sexual harassment of students, staff members or third parties shall include, but is not limited to, 
unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal, nonverbal or physical conduct of 
a sexual nature when: 
 
1. The conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of demanding sexual favors in exchange for 

benefits; 

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct or communication is used as the basis for educational 
decisions affecting a student or employment or assignment of staff members; 

3. The conduct or communication is so severe, persistent or pervasive that it has the purpose or effect 
of unreasonably interfering with a student’s educational performance or with an employeestaff 
member’s ability to perform his/her job responsibilities; or creates an intimidating, offensive or 
hostile educational or working environment. Relevant factors to be considered will include, but not 
be limited to, did the individual view the environment as hostile; was it reasonable to view the 
environment as hostile; the nature of the conduct; how often the conduct occurred and how long it 
continued; age and sex of the complainant; whether the alleged harasser was in a position of power 
over the student or staff member subjected to the harassment; number of individuals involved; age of 
the alleged harasser; where the harassment occurred; and other incidents of sexual harassment at the 
school involving the same or other students, or staff members or third parties. 

Examples of sexual harassment may include, but not be limited to, physical touching or graffiti of a sexual 
nature; displaying or distributing of sexually explicit drawings; pictures and written materials; sexual 
gestures or obscene jokes; touching oneself sexually or talking about one’s sexuality in front of others; or 
spreading rumors about or rating other students or others as to appearance, sexual activity or performance. 
 

99



 

R6/12/146/21/18│PH Sexual Harassment – GBN/JBA
2-3

 

All complaints about behavior that may violate this policy shall be promptly investigated. Any students, 
employee staff members or third partyies who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy or feels 
he/she isthey are a victim of sexual harassment must immediately report his/hertheir concerns to the 
principal, compliance officer or superintendent, who has overall responsibility for all investigations. A 
sStudents may also report concerns to a teacher, counselor or school nurse, who will promptly notify the 
appropriate district official.  
 
Upon receipt of a complaint by a student, student’s parents, a staff member or a third party alleging 
behavior that may violate this policy, the district shall provide written notice as required by Oregon 
Revised Statute (ORS) 342.704(4) to the complainant. 
 
The student and/or the student’s parents, orthe staff member or the third party who initiated the complaint 
shall be notified of the findings of the investigation and, if appropriate, that remedial action has been taken 
that the investigation has been concluded and as to whether a violation of this policy was found to have 
occurred to the extent allowable under state and federal confidentiality laws. 
 
The initiation of a complaint in good faith about behavior that may violate this policy shall may not 
adversely affect the educational assignments or study educational environment of a student complainant, 
or any terms or conditions of employment or work environment of the staff member complainant or any 
terms or conditions of employment or of work or educational environment of a third-party complainant. 
There shall be no retaliation by the district against any person who, in good faith, reports, files a complaint 
or otherwise participates in an investigation or inquiry of sexual harassment. 
 
It is the intent of the Board that appropriate corrective action will be taken by the district to stop the sexual 
harassment, prevent its recurrence and address negative consequences. Students in violation of this policy 
shall be subject to discipline up to and including expulsion and/or counseling or sexual harassment 
awareness training, as appropriate. The age and maturity of the student(s) involved and other relevant 
factors will be considered in determining appropriate action. Employees Staff members in violation of this 
policy shall be subject to discipline, up to and including dismissal and/or additional sexual harassment 
awareness training, as appropriate. Other individuals whose behavior is found to be in violation of this 
policy shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as determined and imposed by the superintendent or the 
Board. 
 
Additionally, the district may report individuals in violation of this policy to law enforcement officials. 
Licensed staff, staff registered with the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC) and those 
participating in practicum programs, as specified by Oregon Administrative Rules, shall be reported to 
TSPC. 
 
The superintendent shall ensure appropriate periodic sexual harassment awareness training or information 
is provided to all supervisors, staff members and students and that annually, the name and position of 
district officials responsible for accepting and managing sexual harassment complaints, business phone 
numbers, addresses or other necessary contact information is readily available. This policy as well as the 
complaint procedure will be made available upon request to all students, parents of students, and staff 
members and third parties, posted on the district’s website [and published in student/parent and staff 
handbooks]. The district’s policy shall be posted on a sign in 1[all [grade 6 through 12] schools] [all 
schools]. Such postingPosted signs shall be by a sign of at least 8-1/2 inches by 11 inches in size. 

                                                 
1 [Posting in “in grade 6 through 12 schools” is the minimum requirement per ORS 342.700.]  

100



 

R6/12/146/21/18│PH Sexual Harassment – GBN/JBA
3-3

 

 
 
The superintendent will establish a process of reporting incidents of sexual harassment. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 243.706 
ORS 342.700 
ORS 342.704 
ORS 342.708 
ORS 342.850 

ORS 342.865 
ORS 659.850 
ORS 659A.006 
ORS 659A.029 
ORS 659A.030 

OAR 581-021-0038 
OAR 584-020-0040 
OAR 584-020-0041 
 
HB 4150 (2018)

 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2012). 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e (2012). 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2012); Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2017). 
Bartsch v. Elkton School District, FDA-13-011 (March 27, 2014). 

101



 

R6/12/146/21/18│PH Sexual Harassment – JBA/GBN
1-3

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: JBA/GBN 
Adopted: 10/9/2006 
Revised: 12/14/2014 
 

Sexual Harassment 
 
The Board is committed to the elimination of sexual harassment in district schools and activities. Sexual 
harassment is strictly prohibited and shall not be tolerated. This includes sexual harassment of students, 
staff members, or third parties on or immediately adjacent to district property, at any district-sponsored 
activity, on any district-provided transportation or at any official district bus stop by other students, staff 
members, Board members or third parties. “Third parties” include, but are not limited to, school 
volunteers, parents, school visitors, service contractors or others engaged in district business, such as 
employees of businesses or organizations participating in cooperative work programs with the district and 
others not directly subject to district control at interdistrict and intradistrict athletic competitions or other 
school events. “District” includes: district facilities; district premises and nondistrict property if the student 
or employee staff member is at any district-sponsored, district-approved or district-related activity or 
function, such as field trips or athletic events, where students are under the control jurisdiction of the 
district; or where the employee staff member is engaged in district business. The prohibition also includes 
off duty conduct which is incompatible with district job responsibilities. 
 
Sexual harassment of students, staff members or third parties shall include, but is not limited to, 
unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal, nonverbal or physical conduct of 
a sexual nature when: 
 
1. The conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of demanding sexual favors in exchange for 

benefits; 

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct or communication is used as the basis for educational 
decisions affecting a student or employment or assignment of staff members; 

3. The conduct or communication is so severe, persistent or pervasive that it has the purpose or effect 
of unreasonably interfering with a student’s educational performance or with an employee’s staff 
member’s ability to perform his/her job responsibilities; or creates an intimidating, offensive or 
hostile educational or working environment. Relevant factors to be considered will include, but not 
be limited to, did the individual view the environment as hostile; was it reasonable to view the 
environment as hostile; the nature of the conduct; how often the conduct occurred and how long it 
continued; age and sex of the complainant; whether the alleged harasser was in a position of power 
over the student or staff member subjected to the harassment; number of individuals involved; age of 
the alleged harasser; where the harassment occurred; and other incidents of sexual harassment at the 
school involving the same or other students, or staff members or third parties. 

Examples of sexual harassment may include, but not be limited to, physical touching or graffiti of a sexual 
nature; displaying or distributing of sexually explicit drawings; pictures and written materials; sexual 
gestures or obscene jokes; touching oneself sexually or talking about one’s sexuality in front of others; or 
spreading rumors about or rating other students or others as to appearance, sexual activity or performance. 
 

102



 

R6/12/146/21/18│PH Sexual Harassment – JBA/GBN
2-3

 

All complaints about behavior that may violate this policy shall be promptly investigated. Any students, 
employee staff members or third partyies who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy or feels 
he/she is they are a victim of sexual harassment must immediately report his/her their concerns to the 
principal, compliance officer or superintendent, who has overall responsibility for all investigations. A 
sStudents may also report concerns to a teacher, counselor or school nurse, who will promptly notify the 
appropriate district official.  
 
Upon receipt of a complaint by a student, student’s parents, staff member or a third party alleging behavior 
that may violate this policy, the district shall provide written notice as required by Oregon Revised Statute 
(ORS) 342.704(4) to the complainant. 
 
The student and/or the student’s parents, orthe staff member or the third party who initiated the complaint 
shall be notified of the findings of the investigation and, if appropriate, that remedial action has been taken 
that the investigation has been concluded and as to whether a violation of this policy was found to have 
occurred to the extent allowable under state and federal confidentiality laws. 
 
The initiation of a complaint in good faith about behavior that may violate this policy shall may not 
adversely affect the educational assignments or study educational environment of a student complainant or 
any terms or conditions of employment or work environment of the staff member complainant or any 
terms or conditions of employment or of work or educational environment of a third-party complainant. 
There shall be no retaliation by the district against any person who, in good faith, reports, files a complaint 
or otherwise participates in an investigation or inquiry of sexual harassment. 
 
It is the intent of the Board that appropriate corrective action will be taken by the district to stop the sexual 
harassment, prevent its recurrence and address negative consequences. Students in violation of this policy 
shall be subject to discipline up to and including expulsion and/or counseling or sexual harassment 
awareness training, as appropriate. The age and maturity of the student(s) involved and other relevant 
factors will be considered in determining appropriate action. Employees Staff members in violation of this 
policy shall be subject to discipline, up to and including dismissal and/or additional sexual harassment 
awareness training, as appropriate. Other individuals whose behavior is found to be in violation of this 
policy shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as determined and imposed by the superintendent or the 
Board. 
 
Additionally, the district may report individuals in violation of this policy to law enforcement officials. 
Licensed staff, staff registered with the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC) and those 
participating in practicum programs, as specified by Oregon Administrative Rules, shall be reported to 
TSPC. 
 
The superintendent shall ensure appropriate periodic sexual harassment awareness training or information 
is provided to all supervisors, staff members and students and that annually, the name and position of 
district officials responsible for accepting and managing sexual harassment complaints, business phone 
numbers, addresses or other necessary contact information is readily available. This policy as well as the 
complaint procedure will be made available upon request to all students, parents of students, and staff 
members and third parties, posted on the district’s website [and published in student/parent and staff 
handbooks]. The district’s policy shall be posted on a sign in [1all [grade 6 through 12] schools] [all 
schools]. Such postingPosted signs shall be by a sign of at least 8-1/2 inches by 11 inches in size. 

                                                 
1 [Posting in “all grade 6 through 12 schools” is the minimum requirement per ORS 342.700.]  

103



 

R6/12/146/21/18│PH Sexual Harassment – JBA/GBN
3-3

 

 
 
The superintendent will establish a process of reporting incidents of sexual harassment. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 

ORS 243.706 
ORS 342.700 
ORS 342.704 
ORS 342.708 
ORS 342.850 

ORS 342.865 
ORS 659.850 
ORS 659A.006 
ORS 659A.029 
ORS 659A.030 

OAR 581-021-0038 
OAR 584-020-0040 
OAR 584-020-0041 
 
HB 4150 (2018)

 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2012). 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e (2012). 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2012); Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2017). 
Davis v. Monroe County Bd. of Educ., 526 U.S. 629 (1999). 
Gebser v. Lago Vista Indep. Sch. Dist., 524 U.S. 274 (1998). 

104



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Domestic Violence, Harassment, Sexual Assault
or Stalking Leave – GCBDC/GDBDC

1-3
 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: GCBDC/GDBDC 
Adopted: 4/14/2008 
Revised: 12/10/2012, 12/9/2013 
 

Domestic Violence, Harassment, Sexual Assault or Stalking Leave 
(For employers who employ six or more employees) 

 
Definitions 
 
1. “Covered employer” means an employer who employs six or more individuals in the state of Oregon 

for each working day through each of 20 or more calendar workweeks in the year in which the 
eligible employee takes leave to address domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking, or 
in the year immediately preceding the year in which an eligible employee takes leave for domestic 
violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking. 

2. “Eligible employee” means an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, harassment, sexual 
assault or stalking or is the parent or guardian of a minor child or dependent who is a victim of 
domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking. 

3. “Protective order” means an order authorized by Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 30.866, 
107.095(1)(c), 107.700 - 107.735, 124.005 - 124.040 or 163.730 - 163.750 or any other order that 
restrains an individual from contact with an eligible employee ofor the employee’s minor child or 
dependent. 

4. “Victim of domestic violence” means an individual who has been a victim of abuse as defined by 
ORS 107.705; or any other individual designated as a victim of domestic violence by rule adopted 
under ORS 659A.805. 

5. “Victim of harassment” means an individual against whom harassment has been committed as 
described in ORS 166.805065 and any other individual designated as a victim of harassment by rule 
adopted under ORS 659A.805. 

6. “Victim of sexual assault” means an individual against whom a sexual offense has been committed 
as described in ORS 163.467 or 163.525; or any other individual designated as a victim of sexual 
assault by rule adopted under ORS 659A.805. 

7. “Victim of stalking” means an individual against whom stalking has been committed as described in 
ORS 163.732; or an individual designated as a victim of stalking by rule adopted under ORS 
695A.805; or an individual who has obtained a court’s stalking protective order or a temporary 
court’s stalking protective order under ORS 30.866. 

8. “Victim services provider” means a prosecutor-based victim assistance program or a nonprofit 
program offering safety planning, counseling, support or advocacy related to domestic violence, 
harassment, sexual assault or stalking. 

 
  

105



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Domestic Violence, Harassment, Sexual Assault
or Stalking Leave – GCBDC/GDBDC

2-3
 

A district (covered employer) shall allow an (eligible) employee to take reasonable leave for any of the 
following reasons: 
 
1. To seek legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies to ensure the health and safety of the 

employee or the employee’s minor child or dependent, including preparing for and participating in 
protective order proceedings or other civil or criminal legal proceedings related to domestic 
violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking; 

2. To seek medical treatment for or to recover from injuries caused by domestic violence or sexual 
assault to or harassment or stalking of the eligible employee or the employee’s minor child or 
dependent; 

3. To obtain or assist a minor child or dependent in obtaining counseling from a licensed mental health 
professional related to an experience of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking; 

4. To obtain services from a victims services providers for the eligible employee or the employee’s 
minor child or dependent; 

5. To relocate or take steps to secure an existing home to ensure health and safety of the eligible 
employee or the employee’s minor child/dependent. 

The district may limit the amount of leave, if the employee’s leave creates an undue hardship on the 
district. 
 
The district shall not deny leave to an employee or discharge, threaten to discharge, demote, suspend or in 
any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee with regards to promotion, compensation or 
other terms, conditions or privileges of employment as a result of taking such leave. 
 
The employee shall give the district reasonable advanced notice of their the employee’s intent to take leave 
unless giving advance notice is not feasible. 
 
The district may require the employee to provide certification that: 
 
1. The employee or minor child/dependent is a victim of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault 

or stalking; and 

2. The leave is taken for one of the identified purposes in this policy. 

Sufficient certification includes: 
 
1. A copy of a report from law enforcement indicating the employee or child/dependent was a victim of 

domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking. 

2. A copy of a protective order or other evidence from a court, administrative agency or attorney that 
the employee appeared in or was preparing for a civil, criminal or administrative proceeding related 
to domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking. 

  

106



 

HR7/19/166/21/18│PHRS Domestic Violence, Harassment, Sexual Assault
or Stalking Leave – GCBDC/GDBDC

3-3
 

3. Documentation from an attorney, law enforcement officer, health care professional, licensed mental 
professional or counselor, member of the clergy or a victims services provider that the employee, 
employee’s child or dependent was undergoing counseling, obtaining services or relocating as a 
result of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking. 

All records and information kept by the district regarding the employee’s leave, including the request or 
obtaining of leave is confidential and may not be released without the express permission of the employee 
unless otherwise required by law. This information will be kept in a file separate from the employee’s 
personnel file. 
 
The employee may use anyall paid accrued vacation leave or may use any other paid leave that is offered 
by the district in lieu of vacation leave, including personal, sick and vacation leave. The employee may 
choose the order in which paid accrued leave is to be used when more than one type of paid leave is 
available. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 192.502355(38) ORS 659A.270 - 659A.290
 

107



 

9/28/176/21/18│PH Volunteers * – IICC
1-2

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: IICC 
Adopted: 12/14/2017 
Revised: 
 

Volunteers * 
 
Community patrons who voluntarily contribute their time and talents to the improvement and enrichment 
of the public schools’ instructional and other programs are valuable assets. The Board encourages 
constructive participation of groups and individuals in the school to perform appropriate tasks during and 
after school hours under the direction and supervision of professional personnel. 
 
1[Any person authorized by the district for volunteer service into a position that will have allows direct, 
unsupervised contact with students shall be required to undergo an Oregon criminal records check.] [Any 
volunteer allowed to have direct, unsupervised contact with students, in a position identified by the district 
as requiring fingerprinting, shall be required to undergo a nationwide criminal records check and 
fingerprinting. [(See Board policy GCDA/GDDA – Criminal Records Checks and Fingerprinting and its 
accompanying administrative regulation.)] ] [Any person authorized by the district for volunteer service 
that will not likely have direct, unsupervised contact with students [will] [will not] be required to undergo 
an Oregon criminal records check.] 
 
[Any volunteer who knowingly makes a false statement, as determined by the district, on a district 
volunteer application form [will] [may] be denied the ability to volunteer in the district.] 
 
[Nonexempt employees2 may be permitted to volunteer to perform services for the district provided the 
volunteer activities do not involve the same or similar type of services3 as the employee’s regularly 
assigned duties. In the event a nonexempt employee volunteers to perform services for the district that are 
the same or similar as the employee’s regularly assigned duties, the Board recognizes that under the Fair 
Labor Standards Act (FLSA), overtime or compensatory time must be provided.4] 
 
The administration is responsible for the recruitment, use, coordination and training of volunteers. These 
assignments will be carried out as directed or delegated by the superintendent. Every effort should be 
made to use volunteer resources in a manner which will ensure maximum contribution to the welfare and 
educational growth of students. 
 
END OF POLICY 

                                                 
1 [The district must make a determination on whether volunteers positions will or will not have be allowed direct, unsupervised 
contact with students, and also decide if any of these volunteer positions will be identified by the district to require a nationwide 
criminal records check through fingerprinting. If the district allows volunteers direct, unsupervised contact with students, this 
language is required. Choose the appropriate bracketed options and align with bracketed language selections made in 
GCDA/GDDA and GCDA/GDDA-AR.] 

2 [There are three types of FLSA exemptions: those for executive, administrative and professional employees. Generally, 
employees who are exempt under the executive, administrative or professional exceptions must primarily perform executive, 
administrative or professional duties at least 50 percent of the employee’s time.] 

3 [Instructional assistant duties are generally viewed to be the same type of service, supervising and instructing students, as 
coaching.] 

4 [Districts should review with legal counsel the use of non-exempt employees in extracurricular activity positions such as 
coaching,  and as advisers for cheerleading advisors and other district-sponsored activities with legal counsel for FLSA district 
impact.] 

108



 

9/28/176/21/18│PH Volunteers * – IICC
2-2

 

 

 
Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS Chapter 243 
ORS 326.607 
ORS 332.107 

OAR 839-020-0005 
HB 2992 (2017) 
 

OAR 581-021-0502

 
Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S.C. §§ 206-207 (2012). 

109



 

R9/28/176/21/18│RS Students with Disabilities - Child Identification Procedures** – IGBA
1-2

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: IGBA 
Adopted: 10/9/2006 
Revised: 12/14/2017, 
 

Students with Disabilities - Child Identification Procedures 
 
The district implements an ongoing system to locate, identify and evaluate all children birth to age 21 
residing within its jurisdiction who have disabilities and need early intervention, early childhood special 
education (EI/ECSE) or special education services. For preschool children the district is responsible for the 
evaluation(s) used to determine eligibility; the designated referral and evaluation agency [Willamette ESD] 
is responsible for determining the eligibility of children for EI/ECSE services in accordance with Oregon 
Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-015-2100. The district identifies all children with disabilities, regardless 
of the severity of their disabilities, including those who are: 
 
1. Highly mobile, such as migrant and homeless children; 

2. Wards of the state; 

3. Indian preschool children living on reservations; 

4. Suspected of having a disability even though they are advanceing from grade to grade; 

5. Home schooled; 

6. Resident and nonresident students, including residents of other states, attending a private school 
(religious or secular) located within the boundaries of the district; 

7. Attending a public charter school located in the district; 

8. Below the age of compulsory school attendance who are not enrolled in a public or private school 
program; orand 

9. Above the age of compulsory school attendance who have not graduated from high school with a 
regular or modified high school diploma and have not completed the school year in which they reach 
their 21st birthday. 

The district determines residency in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 339 and, for 
the purposes of public charter school students with disabilities, in accordance with ORS Chapter 338 and 
ORS Chapter 339. The district enrolls all students who are five by on or before September 1 of the current 
school year. Students with disabilities are eligible to enroll in the district through the school year in which 
they reach the age of 21 if they have not graduated with a regular or modifiedhigh school diploma. 
 
The district shall annually submit data to the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) regarding the 
number of resident students with disabilities who have been identified, located and evaluated and are 
receiving special education and related services. The district conducts an annual count of the total number 
of private school children attending private schools located within the boundaries of the district, and a  
  

110



 

R9/28/176/21/18│RS Students with Disabilities - Child Identification Procedures** – IGBA
2-2

 

count of all children with disabilities attending private schools located within the boundaries of the district, 
in accordance with OAR 581-015-2465. The district reports any additional data to ODE as required by the 
ODE to meet the requirements of federal or state law and the applicable reporting dates. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 332.075 
ORS 338.165 
ORS 339.115 - 339.137 
ORS 343.151 
ORS 343.157 
ORS 343.193 
ORS 343.221 

ORS 343.517 
ORS 343.533 
 
OAR 581-015-2040 
OAR 581-015-2045 
OAR 581-015-2080 
OAR 581-015-2085 

OAR 581-015-2190 
OAR 581-015-2195 
OAR 581-015-2315 
OAR 581-015-2480 
OAR 581-021-0029 
OAR 581-022-2315

 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. § 1412(a)(3) (2012). 
Early Intervention Program for Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities, 34 C.F.R. Part 303 (2017). 
Assistance to States for the Education of Children with Disabilities, 34 C.F.R. § 300.111 (2017). 

111



 

R9/28/176/21/18│RS Special Education - Evaluation Procedures** – IGBAH
1-3

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: IGBAH 
Adopted: 10/9/2006 
Revised: 12/14/2017, 
 

Special Education - Evaluation Procedures** 
 
Consistent with its child find and parent consent obligations, the district responds promptly to requests 
initiated by a parent or public agency for an initial evaluation to determine if a child is a child with a 
disability. 
 
A full and individual evaluation of a student’s educational needs that meets the criteria established in the 
Oregon Administrative Rules will be conducted before determining eligibility and before the initial 
provision of special education and related services to a student with a disability. The district implements 
an ongoing system to locate, identify and evaluate all children birth to 21 residing within its jurisdiction 
who have disabilities and need early intervention, early childhood special education or special education 
services. 
 
The district identifies all children with disabilities, regardless of the severity of their disabilities, including 
children who are: 
 
1. Highly mobile, such as migrant and homeless children; 

2. Wards of the state; 

3. Indian preschool children living on reservations; 

4. Suspected of having a disability even though they are advanceing from grade to grade; 

5. Home schooled; 

6. Resident and nonresident students, including residents of other states, attending private school 
(religious or secular) located within the boundaries of the district; 

7. Attending a public charter school located in the district; 

8. Below the age of compulsory school attendance who are not enrolled in a public or private school 
program; orand 

9. Above the age of compulsory school attendance who have not graduated from high school with a 
regular or modifiedhigh school diploma and have not completed the school year in which they reach 
their 21st birthday. 

The district is responsible for evaluating and determining eligibility for special education services for 
school-age children. The district is responsible for evaluating children who may be eligible for early 
intervention/early childhood special education (EI/ECSE) services. The district’s designated referral and 
evaluation agency is responsible for determining eligibility. 
 
 

112



 

R9/28/176/21/18│RS Special Education - Evaluation Procedures** – IGBAH
2-3

 

 
Before conducting any evaluation or re-evaluation, the district: 
 
1. Plans the evaluation with a group that includes the parent(s); 

2. Provides prior written notice to the parent(s) that describes any proposed evaluation procedures the 
agency proposes to conduct as a result of the evaluation planning process; and 

3. Obtains informed written consent for evaluation. 

The district conducts a comprehensive evaluation or re-evaluation before: 
 
1. Determining that a child has a disability; 

2. Determining that a child continues to have a disability; 

3. Changing the child’s eligibility; 

4. Providing special education and related services; 

5. Terminating the child’s eligibility for special education, unless the termination is due to graduation 
from high school with a regular or modified diploma or exceeding the age of eligibility for a free 
appropriate public education. 

Upon completion of the evaluation, the district provides the parent or eligible child a copy of the 
evaluation report at no cost. The evaluation report describes and explains the results of the evaluation. 
Upon completion of the eligibility determination, the district provides the parent or eligible child 
documentation of eligibility determination at no cost. 
 
The district ensures that assessments and other evaluation materials, including those tailored to assess 
specific areas of education need, used to assess a child are: 
 
1. Selected and administered so as not to be racially or culturally discriminatory; 

2. Provided and administered in the child’s native language or other mode of communication and form 
most likely to yield accurate information on what the child knows and can do academically, 
developmentally, and functionally unless it is clearly not feasible to do so; 

3. Used for purposes for which assessments or measures are valid and reliable; 

4. Administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel; and 

5. Administered in accordance with any instructions provided by the producer of such assessments. 

Materials and procedures used to assess a child with limited English proficiency are selected and 
administered to ensure that they measure the extent to which the child has a disability and needs special 
education, rather than measuring the child’s English language skills. 
 
A student must meet the eligibility criteria established in the Oregon Administrative Rules. 
 

113



 

R9/28/176/21/18│RS Special Education - Evaluation Procedures** – IGBAH
3-3

 

 
The district conducts re-evaluations: 
 
1. When the educational or related services needs, including improved academic achievement and 

functional performance of the children warrant a re-evaluation; 

2. When the child’s parents or teacher requests a re-evaluation; and 

3. At least every three years, unless that parent and the district agree that a re-evaluation is 
unnecessary. 

The district does not conduct re-evaluation more than once a year, unless the parent and district agree 
otherwise. 
 
If a parent has previously revoked consent for special education and related services and subsequently 
requests special education and related services, the district will conduct an initial evaluation of the student 
to determine eligibility for special education. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 343.155 
ORS 343.157 

ORS 343.164 
OAR 581-015-2000 

OAR 581-015-2095 
OAR 581-015-2105 - 2190

 
Assistance to States for the Education of Children with Disabilities, 34 C.F.R. §§ 300.300, 300.530-300.534, 300.540-300.543,  
300.7 (2017). 

114



 

R9/28/176/21/18│RS Special Education - Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE)** – IGBAJ
1-2

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: IGBAJ 
Adopted: 10/9/2006 
Revised: 12/9/2013, 12/14/2017 
 

Special Education - Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE)** 
 
1. The district admits all resident school-age children with disabilities and makes special education and 

related services available at no cost to those: 

a. Who have reached five years of age but have not yet reached 21 years of age on or before 
September 1 of the current school year, even if they have not failed or have not been retained 
in a course or grade or are advancing from grade to grade; 

b. Who have not graduated with a regular or modified high school diploma; 
c. Who have been suspended or expelled in accordance with special education discipline 

provisions; or 
d. Who reach age 21 before the end of the school year. These students remain eligible until the 

end of the school year in which they reach 21. 

2. The district determines residency in accordance with Oregon law. 

3. The district takes steps to ensure that its children with disabilities have available to them the variety 
of educational programs and services available to nondisabled children in the area served by the 
district and provides a continuum of services to meet the individual special education needs of all 
resident children with disabilities, and children with disabilities who are enrolled in public charter 
schools located in the district. 

4. The district may, but is not required to, provide special education and related services to a student 
who has graduated with a regular or modified diploma. 

5. State law prohibits the district from recommending to parents, or requiring a child to obtain, a 
prescription for medication to affect or alter thought processes, mood or behavior as a condition of 
attending school, receiving an evaluation to determine eligibility for early childhood special 
education or special education, or receiving special education services. 

6. If the individualized education program (IEP) team determines that placement in a public or private 
residential program is necessary to provide FAPE, the program, including nonmedical care and room 
and board, must be at no cost to the parents of the child. 

7. If a parent revokes consent for a student receiving special education and related services, the district 
will not be considered to be in violation of the requirement to make FAPE available to the student 
because of the failure to provide the student with further special education and related services. 

END OF POLICY 
 

  

115



 

R9/28/176/21/18│RS Special Education - Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE)** – IGBAJ
2-2

 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 338.165 
ORS 339.115 
ORS 343.085 
ORS 343.224 
 

OAR 581-015-2020 
OAR 581-015-2035 
OAR 581-015-2040 - 2065 
OAR 581-015-2050 
OAR 581-015-2075 

OAR 581-015-2530 
OAR 581-015-2600 
OAR 581-015-2605 
OAR 581-021-0029

 
Assistance to States for the Education of Children with Disabilities, 34 C.F.R. §§ 300.17, 300.101-110, 300.113, 300.300 
(2017). 

116



 

HR9/28/176/21/18│RS Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE
1-5

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: IGBHE 
Adopted: 10/9/2006 
Revised: 2/27/2012, 12/14/2017 
 

Expanded Options Program** 
 
The Board is committed to providing additional options to students enrolled in grades 11 and 12 to 
continue or complete their education, to earn concurrent high school and college credits and to gain early 
entry into post-secondary education. The district’s Expanded Options Program (EOP) will comply with all 
requirements of Oregon law (ORS 340) and give priority status to “at-risk” students. 
 
Eligible Students 
 
Eligible students may apply to take courses at an eligible post-secondary institution through the Expanded 
Options Program. A student is eligible for the EOP if he/she: 
 
1. Is 16 years of age or older at the time of enrollment in a course under the EOP; 

2. Is in grade 11 or 12 at the time of enrollment in a course under the EOP or has not yet completed the 
required credits to be in grade 11 or 12, but the district has allowed the student to participate in the 
program; 

3. Has developed an educational learning plan; 

4. Has not successfully completed the requirements for a high school diploma or a modified diploma. A 
student who has graduated from high school may not participate; and 

5. Is not a foreign exchange student enrolled in a school under a cultural exchange program. 

Student Notification 
 
Prior to February 15 of each year, the district shall notify all high school students and the parent or 
guardian of students of the EOP for the following school year. The district will notify a transfer high 
school student, or a returning dropout, of the EOP if the student enrolls after the district has issued the 
February 15 notice. The district will notify a high school student who has officially expressed an intent to 
participate in the EOP, and the student’s parent or guardian, of the student’s eligibility status within 20 
business days of the expression of intent. 
 
It is a priority for the district to provide information about the EOP to high school students who have 
dropped out of school. The district shall establish a process to identify and provide those students with 
information about the program. The district shall send information about the program to the last-known 
address of the family of the student. 
 
The notice must include the following: 
 
1. Financial arrangements for tuition, textbooks, equipment and materials; 

117



 

HR9/28/176/21/18│RS Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE
2-5

 

2. Available transportation services; 

3. The effect of enrolling in the EOP on the student’s ability to complete high school graduation 
requirements; 

4. The consequences of failing or not completing a post-secondary course; 

5. Notification that participation in the EOP is contingent on acceptance by an eligible post-secondary 
institution; 

6. District timelines affecting student eligibility and duplicate course determinations; 

7. Exclusion of duplicate courses as determined by the district; 

8. The process for a student to appeal the district’s duplicate course determination to the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction or the Superintendent’s designee under ORS 340.030; 

9. Exclusion of post-secondary courses in which a student is enrolled if the student is also enrolled full 
time in the resident high school. 

Enrollment Process 
 
Prior to May 15 of each year, a student who is interested in participating in the EOP shall notify the district 
of his/her intent to enroll in eligible post-secondary courses during the following school year. A high 
school transfer student or returning dropout has 20 business days from the date of enrollment to indicate 
interest. 
 
The district shall review with the student and the student’s parent or guardian the student’s current status 
toward meeting all state and district graduation requirements and the applicability of the proposed 
eligible post-secondary course to the remaining graduation requirements. 
 
A student who intends to participate in the EOP shall develop an educational learning plan in cooperation 
with an advisory support team. An advisory support team may include the student, the student’s parent or 
guardian and a teacher or a counselor. The educational learning plan may include: 
 
1. The student’s short-term and long-term learning goals and proposed activities; and 

2. The relationship of the eligible post-secondary courses proposed under the EOP and the student’s 
learning goals. 

A student who enrolls in the EOP may not enroll in eligible post-secondary courses for more than the 
equivalent of two academic years. A student who first enrolls in the EOP in grade 12 may not enroll in 
eligible post-secondary courses for more than the equivalent of one academic year. If a student first enrolls 
in an eligible post-secondary course in the middle of the school year, the time of participation shall be 
reduced proportionately. If a student is enrolled in a year-round program and begins each grade in the 
summer session, summer sessions are not counted against the time of participation. 
 
  

118



 

HR9/28/176/21/18│RS Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE
3-5

 

Duplicate Courses 
 
The district will establish a process to determine duplicate course designations. The district will notify an 
eligible student and the student’s parent or guardian, of any course the student wishes to take that the 
district determines is a duplicate course, within 20 business days after the student has submitted a list of 
intended courses. 
 
A student may appeal a duplicate course determination to the Board based on evidence of the scope of the 
course. The Board will issue a decision on the appeal within 30 business days of receipt of the appeal. If 
the appeal is denied by the Board, the student may appeal the district’s determination to the Superintendent 
of Public Instruction or designee under ORS 340.030. 
 
Expanded Options Program Annual Credit Hour Cap 
 
The number of quarter credit hours that may be awarded by a high school under the EOP is limited to an 
amount equal to the number of students in grades 9 through 12 enrolled in the high school multiplied by a 
factor of 0.33. For example, the cap for a high school with 450 students in grades 9 through 12 would be 
148.5 (450 X 0.33 = 148.5). (The caps must be established separately for each high school.) 
 
At the district’s discretion, the district may choose to exceed both the individual high school level cap and 
the aggregate district level cap. If the district has more eligible students than are allowed under the credit 
hour cap the district shall establish a process for selecting eligible students for participation in the 
program. The process will give priority for participation to students who are “at risk.”  An “at-risk student” 
means: (1) a student who qualifies for a free or reduced price lunch program; or (2) an at-risk student as 
defined by rules adopted by the State Board of Education if it has adopted rules to define an at-risk 
student. 
 
If the district has not exceeded the credit hour cap, the district shall ensure that all eligible at-risk students 
are allowed to participate in the EOP and may allow eligible students who are not at-risk to participate in 
the program. 
 
Post-Secondary Institution Credit 
 
Prior to beginning an eligible post-secondary course, the district shall notify the student of the number and 
type of credits that the student will be granted upon successful completion of the course. If there is a 
dispute between the district and the student regarding the number or type of credits that the district will or 
has granted to a student for a particular course, the student may appeal the district’s decision to the Board. 
 
Credits granted to a student shall be counted toward high school graduation requirements and subject area 
requirements of the state and the district. Evidence of successful completion of each course and credits 
granted shall be included in the student’s education record. A student shall provide the district with a copy 
of the student’s grade in each course taken for credit under the EOP. The student’s education record shall 
indicate that the credits were earned at an eligible post-secondary institution. 
 
Financial Agreement 
 
The district shall negotiate in good faith a financial agreement with the eligible post-secondary institution 
for the payment of actual instructional costs associated with the student’s enrollment, including tuition, 
textbooks, equipment and materials. 

119



 

HR9/28/176/21/18│RS Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE
4-5

 

Waiver 
 
A district may request a waiver from the Superintendent of Public Instruction if: 
 
1. Compliance would adversely impact the finances of the district; or 

2. Accel Programs are offered by the district (i.e., Dual Credit, Sponsored-Based Dual Credit, 
Assessment-Based Dual Credit, Articulated Career Technical Education (CTE) courses, two-plus-
two programs, Advanced Placement (AP), International Baccalaureate Programs or other locally 
developed program that offers Accelerated College Credit to their respective high school student). 

Student Reimbursement 
 
Students are not eligible for any state student financial aid for college coursework, but students may apply 
to the district for reimbursement for any textbooks, fees, equipment or materials purchased by the student 
that are required for an eligible post-secondary course. All textbooks, fees, equipment and materials 
provided to a student and paid for by the district are the property of the district. 
 
Transportation Services 
 
The district may provide transportation services to eligible students who attend post-secondary institutions 
within the education service district boundaries of which the district is a component district. 
 
Special Education Services 
 
The district of an eligible student participating in the EOP shall be responsible for providing any required 
special education and related services to the student. If a post-secondary institution intends to provide 
special education and related services to an EOP participant, the institution shall enter into a written 
contract with the district of the student. The contract shall include the following at a minimum: 
 
1. Allowance for the student to remain in the program during the pendency of any special education 

due process hearing unless the parent or guardian and district agree otherwise; 

2. Immediate notification to the district if the institution suspects that a student participating in the 
program may have a disability and requires special education or related services; 

3. Immediate notification to the district if the student engaged in conduct that may lead to suspension 
or expulsion; and 

4. Immediate notification to the district of any complaint made by the parent or guardian of the student 
regarding the student’s participation in the program at the institution. 

District Alternative Programs 
 
The EOP does not affect any program, agreement or plan that existed on January 1, 2006 between the 
district and a post-secondary institution, which has been continued or renewed. 
 
  

120



 

HR9/28/176/21/18│RS Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE
5-5

 

Any new program, agreement or plan that is developed after January 1, 2006 may be initiated at the 
discretion of the district and the post-secondary institution. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.485 
ORS 332.072 

ORS 336.615 - 336.665 
ORS Chapter 340

 
Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1111-1605; §§ 3111-3203 (2012). 
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, Subtitle VII-B, reauthorized by Title IX-A of the Every Student Succeeds Act, 42 
U.S.C. §§ 11431-11435 (2012). 

121



 

HR9/28/176/21/18│RS Admission of Resident Students** – JECA
1-2

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: JECA 
Adopted: 10/0/2006 
Revised: 12/14/2017 
 

Admission of Resident Students** 
 
A school-age student who lives within the district attendance area between the ages of 5 and 19 shall be 
allowed to attend school without paying tuition. 
 
A student who turns 19 years of age during the school year shall continue to be eligible for a free and 
appropriate public education for the remainder of the school year. 
 
The Board may admit an otherwise eligible student who is not receiving special education and who has not 
yet attained 21 years of age prior to the beginning of the current school year if he/she is shown to be in 
need of additional education in order to receive a diploma or a modified diploma. This student may attend 
school without paying tuition for the remainder of the school year. 
 
The Board shall admit an otherwise eligible student who has not yet attained age 21 prior to the beginning 
of the current school year if the student is receiving special education services and: 
 
1. Has not yet received a regular high school diploma or a modified diploma; or 

2. Has received a modified diploma, an extended diploma or an alternative certificate. 

A student with disabilities shall be considered a resident in which the child’s parent or guardian resides 
under criteria identified in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 339.134. 
 
A student with disabilities voluntarily placed outside the home by his/her parent or guardian may continue 
to attend the school the student was attending prior to the placement as a district resident, when the 
student’s parent or guardian and school staff can demonstrate it is in the student’s best interest. 
 
The Board [will] [will not] [may, based on district criteria,] deny regular school admission to a student 
who has become a resident student and who is under expulsion from another district for reasons other than 
a weapons policy violation. 
 
The Board shall deny, for at least one calendar year from the date of the expulsion, regular school 
admission to a student who has become a resident student and who is under expulsion from another district 
for a weapons policy violation. 
 
The Board [will] [will not] [may, based on district criteria,] provide alternative programs of instruction to a 
student expelled for a weapons policy violation. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

 
 

122



 

HR9/28/176/21/18│RS Admission of Resident Students** – JECA
2-2

 

 
Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 109.056 
ORS 327.006 

ORS 339.115 
ORS 339.133 

ORS 339.134 
ORS 433.267

 

123



 

R4/17/176/21/18│PH Reporting Requirements Regarding Sexual Conduct with Students – JHFF
1-2

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: JHFF 
Adopted: 2/13/2012 
Revised: 12/10/2012, 9/9/2013 
 

Reporting Requirements Regarding Sexual Conduct with Students 
 
Sexual conduct by district/school employees, contractors or agents1 of the district will not be tolerated. All 
district/school employees, contractors and agents of the district are subject to this policy. 
 
“Sexual conduct,” as defined by Oregon law, is any verbal or physical [or other] conduct by a school 
employee that is sexual in nature; directed toward a kindergarten through grade 12 student; unreasonably 
interferes with a student’s educational performance; and creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive 
educational environment. The definition for sexual conduct does not include behavior that would be 
considered child abuse as outlined by Oregon law and district Board policy JHFE and JHFE-AR - 
Reporting of Suspected Abuse of a Child. 
 
Any district/school employee, contractor or agent of the district [or volunteer] who has reasonable cause to 
believe that another district/school employee, contractor[,] [or] agent of the district [or volunteer] has 
engaged in sexual conduct with a student must immediately notify his/her [immediate supervisor] [the 
person identified by the district to receive such reports]. 
 
When the district receives a report of suspected sexual conduct by a district employee, the district may 
decide to place the employee on paid administrative leave or in a position that does not involve direct, 
unsupervised contact with students while conducting an investigation. When the district receives a report 
of suspected sexual conduct by a contractor[2] or agent of the district, the district may decide to suspend 
services of that contractor or place the agent in a position that does not involve direct, unsupervised 
contact with students while conducting an investigation. An “investigation” is a detailed inquiry into the 
factual allegations of a report of suspected sexual conduct that is based on interviews with the 
complainant, witnesses, the district employee, the contractor, the agent of the district or the student who is 
the subject of the report. If the subject of the report is a schooldistrict employee represented by a contract 
or a collective bargaining agreement, the investigation must meet any negotiated standards of such 
employment contract or agreement. 
 
If, following the investigation, the report is substantiated, the district will inform the district employee, 
contractor or agent of the district that the report has been substantiated and provide information regarding 
the appeal process. [The employee may appeal the district’s decision through the appeal process provided 
by the district’s collective bargaining agreement, if applicable.] [The employee, contractor or agent of the 
district may appeal the district’s decision through an appeal process administered by a neutral third party.] 
[A volunteer may appeal the district’s decision through the district’s complaint procedure.] [A 
“substantiated report” means a report of abuse or sexual conduct that: a) an educational provider has 
reasonable cause to believe is founded based on the available evidence after conducting an investigation; 

                                                 
1 An “agent” is a person authorized to act on behalf of another (called the principal) to create legal relations with a third party. 

2 [The district is encouraged to duplicate this language in the contract. If the contract is with a company and the person assigned 
to do the work is the alleged perpetrator, the district shall notify the company and request another company employee be 
assigned to complete the work.] 

124



 

R4/17/176/21/18│PH Reporting Requirements Regarding Sexual Conduct with Students – JHFF
2-2

 

and b) involves conduct that the educational provider determines is sufficiently serious to be documented 
in the employee’s personnel file or the student’s education record, and in the administrative file for the 
contractor or agent of the district.] 
 
If the district employee, contractor or agent of the district decides not to appeal the determination or if the 
determination is sustained after an appeal, a record of the substantiated report will be placed in the 
employee’s personnel file or in the administrative file for the contractor or agent of the district. The 
employee, contractor or agent of the district will be notified that this information may be disclosed to a 
potential employer. The district will not serve as a reference for a contractor or agent of the district that has 
a substantiated report. 
 
The district will post in each school building the name and contact information of the person designated to 
receive sexual conduct reports, as well as the procedures the [personnel director] [superintendent] [Board 
chair] will follow upon receipt of a report. In the event that the designated person is the suspected 
perpetrator, the [personnel director] [superintendent] [Board chair] shall receive the report. [If the 
superintendent is the alleged perpetrator, the Board chair shall receive the report.] When the [personnel 
director] [superintendent] [Board] takes action on the report, the person who initiated the report must be 
notified. 
 
The initiation of a report in good faith about suspected sexual conduct may not adversely affect any terms 
or conditions of employment or the work environment of the complainant. If a student initiates a report of 
suspected sexual conduct by a district employee, a contractor or an agent of the district in good faith, the 
student will not be disciplined by the Board or any district employee. 
 
The district will provide annual training to district employees, parents and students regarding the 
prevention and identification of sexual conduct. The district will provide to employees, contractors or 
agents of the district at the time of hire a description of conduct that may constitute sexual conduct and a 
description of records subject to disclosure if a sexual conduct report is substantiated. 
 
Educational providers shall follow hiring and reporting procedures as outlined in ORS 339.374 for all 
district employees. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 339.370 - 339.400 ORS 418.746 - 418.751 ORS 419B.005 - 419B.045
 
Every Student Succeeds Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7926 (2012). 

 
 
  

125



 

HR6/27/176/21/18│PH RS Public Solicitation in District Facilities – KI
1-2

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: KI 
Adopted: 10/9/2006 
Revised:  
 

Public Solicitation in District Facilities 
 
Students and staff are to be protected from intrusions by announcements, posters, bulletins and 
communications of any kind from individuals and organizations not directly connected with the schools. 
 
Fund raising and solicitation by non-school agencies or for non-school activities during school hours will 
not be permitted without prior approval of the [superintendent and/or principal]. 
 
Demonstrations of services or materials and canvassing of students or employees for the purpose of selling 
products or services shall not be permitted in either the district’s schools or grounds, unless authorized by 
the [superintendent and/or principal]. 
 
No non-school-sponsored organization or individual may solicit funds or sell tickets within the district 
without first securing permission through the [superintendent and/or principal]. 
 
Whenever possible, solicitation should occur during non-classroom time. 
 
The solicitation and sale of travel services to students [is prohibited] [may be permitted with approval of 
the [superintendent] [Board]] on district property, at activities under the jurisdiction of the district and at 
interscholastic activities administered by a voluntary organization approved by the State Board of 
Education (i.e., Oregon School Activities Association). 
 
This includes sale of services to students by any person or group that sells, provides, furnishes, contracts 
for, arranges or advertises travel services. 
 
[Sellers of travel services must meet the following district criteria: 
 
1. Belong to an association of sellers of travel certified by the director of the Department of Consumer 

and Business Services; 

2. Provide proof of errors and omissions insurance; 

3. Provide proof of a client trust account or performance bond 

4. Submit references 

5. Include in all information provided to students and parents that drug, alcohol and tobacco use will be 
prohibited 

6. Include in all information provided to students and parents a statement that the activity is a non-
school-sponsored event; 

7. Other.] 

126



 

HR6/27/176/21/18│PH RS Public Solicitation in District Facilities – KI
2-2

 

The administration of surveys, questionnaires and requests for information by non-school-connected 
organizations are disallowed prohibited. Exceptions may be approved by the superintendent. In the event 
an exception is granted for the administration or distribution of a survey created by a third party, the 
district will provide an opportunity for the student’s parent to inspect such survey upon request, before the 
survey is administered or distributed by a school to a student, as required by the Every Student Succeeds 
Act (ESSA). Any district survey containing any “covered survey items”1 as defined by ESSA may also be 
inspected by parents. 
 
Parents may also request that their student be excused from participation in such surveys. Requests may be 
submitted in accordance with the provisions of Board policy KAB - Parental Rights and accompanying 
administrative regulation. 
 
As required by law, the superintendent shall ensure that notification is provided to parents of students at 
least annually at the beginning of the school year or when enrolling students for the first time in school, of 
the specific or approximate dates during the school year when such surveys are scheduled or expected to 
be scheduled. The rights provided to parents under this policy transfer to the student when the student 
turns 18 years of age or is an emancipated minor under applicable state law. 
 
The district recognizes its responsibility to protect student privacy. Personal information that may be 
collected as a result of such surveys will be released only with prior, written parental permission, unless as 
otherwise provided by ESSA law and/or the provisions of Board policy JOB - Personally Identifiable 
Information. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 332.107 ORS 339.880
 
32 OR. ATTY. GEN. OP. 209 (1965) 
46 OR. ATTY. GEN. OP 239 (1989) 
Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h (2012); Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34 
C.F.R. Part 98 (2017). 
Every Student Succeeds Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7928 (2012). 
Family Education Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2012). 

                                                 
1 “Covered survey items” under the ESSA include one or more of the following items: political affiliations or beliefs of the 
student or the student’s family; mental and psychological problems of the student or the student’s family; sex behavior or 
attitudes; illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating or demeaning behavior; critical appraisals of other individuals with whom 
respondents have close family relationships; legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers, 
physicians and ministers; religious practices, affiliations or beliefs of the student or the student’s parent; and income, other than 
that required by law to determine eligibility for participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such a 
program. 

127



 

HR2/11/026/21/18│MWRS Commercial Advertising/Merchandise Sales – KI/KJ
1-2

 

Yamhill Carlton School District 
 
Code: KI/KJ 
Adopted:  
 

Commercial Advertising/Merchandise Sales 
(Version 2) 

(May permit some commercial advertising and merchandise sales as approved.) 
 
The Board recognizes that district-sponsored commercial advertising and merchandise sales may provide 
an important source of revenue for its programs and activities. Such sales may be permitted as approved by 
the superintendent or designee and as provided by this policy. 
 
“Commercial advertising” as used in this policy means, use by any person, company, business or 
corporation, for personal or private gain, of any district media, including, but not limited to, school 
newspaper, yearbook or other printed material, flyer or circular, [radio, television,] video or any other 
electronic technology or indoor or outdoor signage designed to: 
 
1. Transmit a message offering any goods or services; 

2. Cause or induce any other person to purchase any goods or services; 

3. Increase demand for any goods or services. 

Commercial advertising and merchandise sales approved by the district must be consistent with district 
mission, goals, Board policies and administrative regulations; promote positive values for district students 
through proactive educational messages that encourage student achievement and high standards of 
personal conduct. 
 
The superintendent may consider for approval revenue-enhancing activities that include, but are not 
limited to, contracts or agreements for: 
 
1. Exclusive advertising and/or rental, sale, lease or use of any product or service throughout the 

district or at specified locations or times to a person, business or corporation in exchange for goods 
or services (e.g., scoreboards, electronic message boards, athletic gear, exclusive right to sell 
beverages, bottled water, snacks, meals, etc.); 

2. Products or services that require the dissemination of advertising to staff, students, parents or others 
or allow any person, business or corporation to obtain information from staff, students, parents or 
others for the purposes of market research; 

3. The use of district facilities or grounds in exchange for products, services or financial considerations 
(e.g., cell phone towers, etc.); 

4. Technology hardware, software, satellite hook-up and/or access in exchange for free or reduced 
prices and/or fees and/or advertising rights, or agreement to use equipment a certain number of hours 
of the day, month, etc.; 

5. Naming rights to district property in exchange for goods, services or monetary considerations. 

128



 

HR2/11/026/21/18│MWRS Commercial Advertising/Merchandise Sales – KI/KJ
2-2

 

The solicitation and sale of travel services to students [is prohibited] [may be permitted with approval of 
the [superintendent] [Board]] on school property, at activities under the jurisdiction of the district and at 
interscholastic activities administered by a voluntary organization approved by the State Board of 
Education (i.e., Oregon School Activities Association). 
 
This includes sale of services to students by any person or group that sells, provides, furnishes, contracts 
for, arranges or advertises travel services. 
 
[Sellers of travel services must meet the following district criteria: 
 
1. Belong to an association of sellers of travel certified by the director of the Department of Consumer 

and Business Services; 

2. Provide proof of errors and omissions insurance; 

3. Provide proof of a client trust account or performance bond; 

4. Submit references; 

5. Include in all information provided to students and parents that drug, alcohol and tobacco use will be 
prohibited; 

6. Include in all information provided to students and parents a statement that the activity is a non-
school-sponsored event; 

7. Other.] 

Contracts shall include a provision allowing the district to terminate the contract if it is determined by the 
district to have an adverse impact on district programs, services or activities. Revenue derived shall be 
used for programs, services and/or activities [designed to enhance student achievement, assist in the 
maintenance of existing district programs, services or activities and/or to provide scholarships for students 
who demonstrate financial need and merit] [as determined by the district]. 
 
All contracts considered for approval are subject to the competitive procurement requirements of Board 
policies DJ - District Purchasing,  DJC - Bidding Requirements and the local contract review board’s 
public contracting rules. Competitive procurement as used in this policy includes monetary as well as in-
kind contributions (i.e., scoreboards, computers, other equipment or materials). 
 
[The superintendent will develop administrative regulations as needed for implementation of this policy.] 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 279B.055 
ORS 279C.335 

ORS 332.107 
ORS 332.593 

ORS 339.880

 
32 OR. ATTY. GEN. OP. 209 (1965) 
46 OR. ATTY. GEN. OP. 239 (1989) 

129


	1.10.2019 Work Session Agenda
	1.10.2019 Regular Session Agenda
	packet draft
	12.13.2018 Work Session Minutes
	12.13.2018 Regular Session Minutes
	Excell Enrollment Report December 2018
	Audit Report
	Application directions
	APPlication
	Scoring Rubric
	GCDA_GDDA G1 - 1st Reading
	ECACB G1
	GBC G1
	GBN_JBA G1
	JBA_GBN G1
	GCBDC_GDBDC G1
	IICC G1
	IGBA G1
	IGBAH G1
	IGBAJ G1
	IGBHE G1
	JECA G1
	JHFF G1
	KI G1
	KI_KJ G2




